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 1                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  January 2008, so

 2       it's been a while.  Anyway, John requested a

 3       reconsideration, and after review of (inaudible) grounds

 4       that were set forth, the Department and the director

 5       granted the petition.  And I'm looking at the order

 6       granting the augmentation hearing.

 7                 And, John, you received a copy of the staff

 8       memorandum?

 9                 MR. KUGLER:  I did see that, and I don't

10       understand it, frankly.  In fact, that was not involved

11       in my record.  It was on the appeal for review by

12       (inaudible).

13                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I understand, but

14       in what was in the order granting the augmentation

15       hearing it says, "Based on this review the director

16       finds that there was no presentation or opportunity for

17       presentation of hearing of evidence regarding the effect

18       of injury or senior priority water rights that might be

19       caused by the development of the beneficial use proposed

20       by Cooper."

21                 MR. KUGLER:  I understand that.  But, however,

22       part of the record there was evidence prior and a prior

23       existing order with respect to it.  And all I.

24       Asked for was to review the record.  That is what I

25       asked for was a hearing on review by the appeal to the
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 1       director.

 2                 And if you recall in September when I hadn't

 3       received anything, the director was there and you said:

 4       I know why you are here.  I was with my son there.  And

 5       when I walked into your room you said:  Oh, I know why

 6       you are here.  Somehow this got misplaced and you pulled

 7       the order, I believe, my request for the review out and

 8       said:  Oh, this is why you are here.

 9                 And then subsequently there we were going to

10       set a hearing and last fall you were going to set a

11       hearing.  In September said, if I had special date, let

12       it go.  It wasn't set.  And the next thing I know --

13       because you said you would go ahead and set it

14       immediately in September or October, it wasn't done

15       because I didn't have a special date, as far as just

16       coming down whenever you could, and that didn't happen.

17                 The next thing I know I get this directive and

18       a hearing date for this hearing today.  And I think,

19       frankly, was prompted by someone who had no business

20       chatting with you about this proceeding.

21                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I want to

22       tell you that --

23                 MR. KUGLER:   Because he sent me a bill with a

24       charge for communicating with you, personally, Mr. Jerry

25       Rigby.
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 1                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I've not

 2       conversed with Jerry Rigby directly about this matter at

 3       all.

 4                 MR. KUGLER:   Well I'm glad to hear that.  I

 5       don't know what he did, but it seems to me like it was a

 6       20 or 30 minute phone call he billed me for, and I

 7       didn't even hire him.  I made inquiries to whether I

 8       should or shouldn't, and I never got a response from him

 9       ever.

10                 So I've been getting no responses constantly

11       for three years when I've been after it trying to get

12       the right to go ahead and proceed with my water,

13       drilling a well.

14                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Let me go back and

15       let's look at what was filed, John.  This is, at least

16       what I have, this is titled "Exception to Memorandum."

17       Is that the document that you are referring to as to

18       your request?

19                 MR. KUGLER:  Correct.

20                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Then you list a

21       number of exceptions?

22                 MR. KUGLER:  Correct.

23                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And by the way,

24       this was deemed to be a request for reconsideration, a

25       petition for reconsideration?
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 1                 MR. KUGLER:   I filed a request for review

 2       with the director, and that is what you've even spoken

 3       of as being when you didn't get it set --

 4                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I'm sorry.

 5                 MR. KUGLER:   -- when you didn't get it set

 6       before he retired and quit coming in.

 7                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, the petition

 8       for reconsideration was denied.  Then you filed the

 9       exception.

10                 MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.

11                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And this is the

12       request.  "The applicant respectfully asks that the

13       director grant reconsideration of the hearing officer's

14       order and provide applicant with the opportunity to

15       submit such other evidence as might be requested or

16       considered, and upon conclusion of the same grant to

17       applicant the right to proceed with the development of

18       the farmland subject to the priority rights and all

19       senior water right holders that may be affected, if

20       any."

21                 So as I read that request, it says "provide

22       the applicant with the opportunity to submit such other

23       evidence as might be requested or considered and upon

24       conclusion of the same grant."  So based on the

25       exceptions that you filed, John, and --
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 1                 MR. KUGLER:  I understand that.

 2                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And so --

 3                 MR. KUGLER:  My point being is, that after

 4       thinking and reviewing it, I'm not planning on

 5       presenting any evidence today.  I want to just resubmit

 6       my thoughts as to what has been missed by you when you

 7       were a hearing officer and now sitting as a director.

 8                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But what I intend

 9       to do, honestly, is to have each of these people who

10       participated in the preparation of this document, they

11       are here today --

12                 MR. KUGLER:   Well, I object as far as the

13       record is concerned to any presentation of evidence

14       other than after I submit some, and I'm not submitting

15       any, and I think the rule provides that.  They let you

16       do it by way of a rebuttal type of thing, because this

17       was from my review of the record, and that is not the

18       record.

19                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But we are not

20       recording yet.  Are we?

21                 MR. MATT WEAVER:  I was recording.

22                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That's fine.

23       It's an informal discussion.  That's fine.  I'm happy to

24       have it on the record.

25                 For the record, John, based on the order that

0008

 1       was issued, it's my opinion that the record was

 2       deficient in this particular area and that you should

 3       have the opportunity to present evidence and that the

 4       Department as well should have the opportunity to put on

 5       evidence regarding those particular issues.  And I won't

 6       create a further deficiency by not having the evidence

 7       in the record.

 8                 So from my perspective this hearing today is

 9       for the purpose of bringing this document into the

10       record, as well as supporting information regarding this

11       information, so that all of that is in the record.  And

12       then if you want to appeal the matter, you can appeal

13       it -- and the information, a reviewing court would have

14       the necessary information.

15                 Otherwise, in my opinion, I'm set up for a

16       remand to go through the same process down the road if,

17       in fact, you don't agree with decision.

18                 MR. KUGLER:  Well, I understand where you are

19       coming from in that particular position, I do.  As I

20       say, my objection is also a formality as far as the

21       record is concerned, because we had a hearing, and that

22       is the record which I had taken forward.  Yes, I was

23       granted a chance to present additional evidence, but

24       that didn't extend to the State, that was from my

25       standpoint.
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 1                 Had I presented some, yes, you could have

 2       offered some.  That is the argument that I will present

 3       on that particular position.  I don't even understand

 4       what that is about.  I can't read it.  I don't know it.

 5                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, and I guess

 6       my intention this morning, John, is to put each of these

 7       witnesses on and just very generally ask them some

 8       questions to explain what is in the documents so you

 9       understand what is here.

10                 MR. KUGLER:  Well, I appreciate that part, but

11       I don't want to waive my right of objection accordingly.

12                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  And I agree,

13       you certainly have the right to object, but I want this

14       to be a full and complete record at this point.  And

15       that is why I've asked staff to prepare the memorandum

16       and that is why I've asked that you be here today.  And

17       you are entitled to ask them after they present their

18       testimony -- it will be more narrative, than anything --

19       to ask them questions about the information that is

20       contained here in on cross-examination.

21                 MR. KUGLER:  All right.

22                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  All right.  With

23       that introduction, and maybe we ought to introduce

24       everybody here again.

25                 My name is Gary Spackman, I'm the hearing
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 1       officer and the interim director of the Department.

 2       This is Matt Weaver to my right, he will be recording

 3       the testimony today.  And Mr. Kugler is here, John

 4       Kugler, we've been conversing.  And also here today is

 5       Shelley Keen, Allan Wylie, Liz Cresto, and Craig Saxton.

 6                 And the record has already captured the

 7       discussion about the proceedings today.  I won't need to

 8       repeat them.  Today is the time and place that was set

 9       for this augmentation hearing.

10                 Do we have any other matters to discuss before

11       we go on the record?

12                 MR. KUGLER:  I just want one question with

13       you, sir.

14                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yes.

15                 MR. KUGLER:  That is, this ground was in CRP

16       when this water right in 1990 was granted, and that I

17       think is a part of the Department record.  But there was

18       a CRP contract along the land; am I correct?

19                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That is my

20       recollection.

21                 MR. KUGLER:  That is my recollection.

22                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Let me just --

23                 MR. KUGLER:  Because I was going to bring the

24       CRP contract itself physically, but I believe I

25       testified to that during the prior hearing.

0011

 1                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That is what I

 2       recall.  And, John, let me give you an opportunity,

 3       first of all, to make an opening statement, you might

 4       want to do that here.  And then I would like -- well, I

 5       will call the witnesses that participated in the

 6       preparation of these documents, because I don't think

 7       it's appropriate that I take this into the record

 8       without you having the opportunity to have them here and

 9       examine them.

10                 MR. KUGLER:  Well, okay, I understand.

11                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And then following

12       their testimony then you'll have an opportunity to

13       present whatever you want to present.  And from my

14       perspective, there won't be any kind of rebuttal from

15       the Department.  I'm just trying to bring evidence into

16       the record.

17                 So let's start, Mr. Kugler, do you wish to

18       make an opening statement?

19                 MR. KUGLER:  Briefly it is, I would start off

20       by commenting with respect to that particular document.

21       I think it's irrelevant to the issue anyway, the

22       petition involved here.  So in addition to procedural

23       objection, I think it's irrelevant on its face.

24                 The question being here is whether or not I

25       was entitled to drill a well as a result of having a
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 1       permit issued to me.  And it is my position that it is,

 2       and I think from that particular standpoint, the record

 3       did evaluate that I should have been granted a right --

 4       a well right to drill a well and have a well driller

 5       apply for a drilling permit on this particular ground.

 6                 And also that not only is it relevant, even if

 7       it were relevant to this particular proceeding, the

 8       mitigating factors which do, in fact, exist within here

 9       as to how much money I had expended and how much time

10       and effort I had spent trying to get that well done

11       before we even tried to put it into CRP.  And I had a --

12       I think the record shows that I had a major investment

13       in equipment that a well driller asked me to acquire and

14       then he stole it and sold it, that type of thing, all of

15       which are factors there.  And I think those overcome any

16       other difficulties and that I should have the right to

17       have the well that came as a part of the issuance of the

18       permit.

19                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, those

20       certainly are issues that need to be addressed.

21                 MR. KUGLER:  Yeah.

22                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And I don't want to

23       discount those issues.

24                 MR. KUGLER:  Yeah.

25                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  The other issues in
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 1       my opinion that relate to this are:  What is the

 2       relationship of your permit with other permits that

 3       either may have been allowed to develop or may have been

 4       held for whatever reason?  What are the policies of the

 5       Department?  What is the law?  And then what are the

 6       impacts?

 7                 MR. KUGLER:  Well, I understand that, yeah.

 8                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So those are

 9       important issues as well.  And I know you feel they are

10       irrelevant, but to develop a full and complete record, I

11       want to have all of that information in place.

12                 MR. KUGLER:  Well, the only rebuttal or

13       additional statement I would make in that regard is:  My

14       position would be is that the record already had a

15       finding in that regard of record.

16                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There certainly was

17       a finding that there wasn't supporting evidence in the

18       record, and that's part of the reason why this order

19       granting the augmentation hearing was issued.

20                 With that opening statement, I will call

21       Shelley Keen.  If you'll step forward, Mr. Keen.  Take a

22       seat at the microphone and raise your right hand.

23                            SHELLEY KEEN,

24       first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said

25       cause, testified as follows:
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 1                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you, please

 2       be seated.

 3   

 4                               EXAMINATION

 5       QUESTIONS BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:

 6             Q.  Mr. Keen, I'll hand you a copy of what is

 7       identified as IDWR Staff Memorandum in the Matter of

 8       Permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B. Kugler and

 9       Diane K. Kugler.

10             A.  Thank you.

11             Q.  Are you aware or acquainted with this

12       document?

13             A.  I am.

14             Q.  And it is contained in the files of the

15       Department of Water Resources and in particular in the

16       File 35-08359.  And you are aware that the director

17       requested preparation of a staff memorandum?

18             A.  Yes.

19             Q.  And can you explain your participation in the

20       preparation of this memorandum?

21             A.  Yes.  I was asked to prepare a list of water

22       rights that have been issued in the trust water area and

23       which contain a condition of approval limiting them to a

24       specific term of years.  And I did that and produced

25       approximately a 15-page list of about 680 water right
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 1       approvals containing those conditions from that trust

 2       water area.

 3             Q.  Can you explain your acquaintance with trust

 4       water, and if you could identify trust water and what it

 5       is and where it came from.  I just want you to narrate

 6       this information as best you can.  I don't want to

 7       necessarily engage in a very rigid examination process.

 8                 And, Mr. Kugler, if you have some objection

 9       during the testimony, you are welcome to tender it at

10       any time.

11                 MR. KUGLER:  Well, I have a standing objection

12       against all of it.  Thank you.

13                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So recognized.

14             Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  Mr. Keen?

15             A.  Okay.  Thank you.

16                 Trust water as defined in the water

17       appropriation rules for the Department of Water

18       Resources is that portion of an unsubordinated water

19       right for generating hydropower that is in excess of a

20       state-established minimum stream flow.

21                 And in Idaho when we speak of trust water, we

22       are usually thinking of the water in the Snake River or

23       its tributaries, including groundwater from Milner Dam

24       where the minimum stream flow is zero, downstream to

25       Murphy Gage where the minimum stream flows are, if I
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 1       remember correctly, 3900 cfs from April through October,

 2       and 5600 cfs from November through March.

 3                 And the reason for that specific area is that

 4       on the downstream end near Murphy there is an Idaho

 5       Power Company dam and facility at Swan Falls where the

 6       unsubordinated water right was, if I remember correctly,

 7       about 8400 cfs.

 8                 So commencing in 1977 there was a lawsuit and

 9       several things that occurred, but it resulted in the

10       State of Idaho acquiring, in exchange for establishment

11       of those minimum stream flows, the portion exceeding

12       those minimums of Idaho Power Company's hydropower right

13       in trust and the opportunity to reallocate that trust

14       water for upstream development as long as that upstream

15       development is in the public interest.

16             Q.  You referred to trust water being located in a

17       particular area.  Can you define that geographical area?

18             A.  Sure.  As I mentioned before, it's the Snake

19       River and surface water and groundwater tributary to the

20       Snake River from Murphy, which is in southwestern Idaho,

21       upstream to Milner Dam in south central Idaho on the

22       Snake River.  And that area generally encompasses

23       groundwater across the Eastern Snake River Plain Aquifer

24       and to some extent in tributary basins like the Wood

25       River and the Lost River Basin, and then also some area
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 1       on the south side of the Snake River extending across

 2       the Magic Valley.

 3             Q.  Are there fixed boundaries that identify where

 4       groundwater or surface water is considered to be trust

 5       water?

 6             A.  Yes.  That boundary is in the Water

 7       Appropriation Rules, IDAPA 37-0308, if I remember

 8       correctly, in an appendix in that area is described with

 9       metes and bounds and a map.

10             Q.  Do you have any familiarity with the way in

11       which the boundary was developed?

12             A.  I'm not really familiar with exactly how that

13       was developed at the time.  I suspect there was some

14       modeling effort, but really I can't testify to extensive

15       knowledge of that.

16             Q.  And can you characterize the importance of

17       trust water area as it relates to the entire Swan Falls

18       controversy and settlement that occurred statewide in

19       the '80s?

20             A.  Yes.  The importance of that was that if the

21       unsubordinated hydropower right held by Idaho Power at

22       Swan Falls had to be honored, then there would have had

23       to be likely a curtailment of water rights throughout

24       the trust water area in order to meet the 8400 cfs water

25       right at Swan Falls.
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 1                 By entering into the agreement the State

 2       avoided that delivery call and allowed water use to

 3       continue upstream from Swan Falls and across the Eastern

 4       Snake Plain Aquifer and also enabled some additional

 5       development of consumptive water uses with the use of

 6       that trust water.

 7             Q.  What was the importance of having a boundary

 8       in a defined area for that settlement?

 9             A.  The importance of having a boundary was for

10       proper administration.  The boundary attempts to

11       describe the area in which water is tributary to the

12       Snake River downstream from Milner Dam as opposed to

13       upstream from Milner Dam.

14                 A water tributary to the Snake River upstream

15       from the Milner Dam is often referred to as nontrust

16       water and that area is the nontrust area.

17                 But for proper administration there needed to

18       be some demarkation between the area where water was

19       going to be considered tributary -- and I'm talking

20       ground water here -- tributary to the Snake River below

21       Milner as opposed to upstream.

22             Q.  Can you explain the background regarding the

23       water rights that you have listed in the staff

24       memorandum and the term condition placed on those water

25       rights?
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 1             A.  Certainly.  As the Department began processing

 2       applications for new water rights within the trust water

 3       area toward the end of the 1980s, it was the policy of

 4       the Department, which continues to this day, to limit

 5       the permits and licenses issued based on those permits

 6       to a term of years, typically 20 years, to allow the

 7       opportunity for the water user to amortize the cost of

 8       development.

 9             Q.  Let me just interrupt for a minute.  I'm sorry

10       for the interruption.

11                 Is this limitation of time, is it purely based

12       on policy or are there other grounds for the Department

13       to have placed a term limit of years, do you know?

14             A.  I actually took some time yesterday to try to

15       determine that question.  And, you know, maybe my

16       research was not complete, but I didn't find the

17       opportunity for a term limit in statute or in rules.  I

18       traced it back to the implementation policy from 1988

19       for the Swan Falls agreement and found several

20       references and an explanation of that policy in that

21       document.

22             Q.  Okay.  Go ahead.  I'm sorry to interrupt.

23             A.  No problem.

24                 So the purpose of the term limit is to provide

25       the director of the Department of Water Resources an
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 1       opportunity periodically to evaluate whether those trust

 2       water rights remain in the public interest.  When they

 3       are initially reviewed, they are reviewed to make sure

 4       that they are individually and collectively not going to

 5       provide a significant reduction to flows of the Snake

 6       River.  And if they are found to probably cause a

 7       significant reduction, then there is a public interest

 8       review and criteria in code and the rules for the

 9       director to conduct that public interest review.

10                 And that public interest review weighs the

11       need for the additional development of the water and its

12       economic value to the state of Idaho in opposition to

13       the value of that water for generating hydropower.

14             Q.  And what are the dates of some of those term

15       limit approvals?

16             A.  So the list that I prepared shows approvals

17       occurring as early as the early 1980s.  I have one, for

18       example, here from 1981, all the way up to current time.

19       Although those that are from more recent time tend to be

20       nonconsumptive uses and DCMI uses and that kind of

21       thing.

22                 The older ones I suspect were permits that

23       were issued and then reprocessed in the late 1980s and

24       early 1990s.  The rules called for permits in the trust

25       water area that had already been issued but had a
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 1       limited development to actually be reprocessed so that

 2       the public interest evaluation could be applied to them.

 3             Q.  Do you know if Mr. Kugler's permit 35-8359 was

 4       one of those that the Department reviewed for

 5       reprocessing?

 6             A.  Yes, that permit did show up on my list.  The

 7       approved date on the list is July 27th, 1990, according

 8       to what I came up with.  And I don't know right off the

 9       top of my head whether it was reprocessed or whether it

10       was still in the application state when trust water

11       processing began.

12             Q.  Let's go back to the term of years for the

13       list of water rights that you have.  Many of those were

14       issued for -- and what was the term of years, its

15       limitation?

16             A.  Almost all of them have a term of 20 years.

17             Q.  And based on the dates that you gave, are some

18       of those term of years expiring now, or terms of years?

19             A.  Yes, that is correct.  Many of the approvals

20       occurred around 1990 or shortly thereafter, so just

21       about now we would be seeing some of these permits and

22       licenses begin to reach the date after which the

23       director can review them for -- to make sure they remain

24       in the public interest.

25             Q.  So what are we doing, now that those terms of
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 1       years are expiring?

 2             A.  The Department has drafted a letter, which has

 3       not gone out yet, but the letter is addressed to holders

 4       of these permits and licenses, and some of them may even

 5       have been decreed in the Snake River Basin Adjudication

 6       now, which contain the term review condition.

 7                 And it's notifying those water right holders

 8       that their terms, their 20-year terms are expiring and

 9       that the Department may begin evaluating those to

10       determine and if they are still in the public interest.

11                 The letter as drafted currently, and I have to

12       say that it hasn't gone out yet, indicates that the

13       Department probably won't begin that review process

14       until about 2014, because the Department is addressing

15       some other priorities first.

16             Q.  And what is the reason for the concern or the

17       letter at this point?

18             A.  As I understand it, I haven't been too heavily

19       involved in these discussions, but to some extent it has

20       to do with the fact that the Snake River Basin

21       adjudication is addressing the hydropower rights held by

22       Idaho Power Company and was an important part of the

23       adjudication process to define some outstanding issues

24       related to trust water and trust water processing.  And

25       as part of that, the State of Idaho needed to commit to
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 1       Idaho Power that it would conduct this review of these

 2       trust water rights.

 3             Q.  Has there been any concern expressed about the

 4       continued use of this trust water and its impacts on the

 5       minimum flows at Murphy?

 6             A.  Yes.  There has been some discussion over the

 7       years.  There have been a limited number of times that

 8       the opportunity to maintain the minimum stream flows has

 9       come into question, the ability to maintain those

10       minimum stream flows.

11                 And because of that -- again, the State of

12       Idaho could be facing the need to curtail water rights

13       to make sure that those minimum stream flows are

14       maintained.  And if the Department were to curtail water

15       rights, presumably these that I've identified on the

16       list, these trust water rights, by definition would be

17       ones that would be candidates for curtailment because

18       they use the water that is tributary to the Snake River

19       and that minimum stream flow reach.

20             Q.  Mr. Keen, do you know whether or not the point

21       of diversion proposed by permit number 35-8359 is within

22       or without the trust water area?

23             A.  Yes, I looked at that yesterday.  And it is

24       within the trust water area about three to four miles

25       north of the line dividing trust water from nontrust
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 1       water in the area of American Falls Reservoir, and north

 2       of that line would put it firmly in the trust water

 3       area.

 4             Q.  But close to the boundary of the trust water?

 5             A.  Yes.  Three to four miles is relatively close

 6       to the boundary, yes.

 7             Q.  And because it's close to the boundary, you

 8       testified at one time about a nontrust water area that

 9       would be upstream, or water tributary above Milner.  Can

10       you talk about the nontrust water area and what it is?

11             A.  Yes.  Under the State water plan, the minimum

12       stream flow on the Snake River at Milner Dam, which is

13       in south central Idaho, is zero, meaning that there is

14       no obligation to deliver water upstream from Milner Dam

15       to uses downstream from Milner Dam.

16                 And the area where groundwater and surface

17       water are tributary to the Snake River upstream from

18       Milner Dam and, therefore, potentially subject to

19       curtailment and administration to regulate water rights

20       by priority, that area is typically referred to as the

21       nontrust water area.

22             Q.  And will you talk about the Department's

23       processing of water rights in the nontrust and trust

24       water area and any possible restrictions on

25       appropriations that have been imposed or in place by the
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 1       Department over the last 20 or 30 years?

 2             A.  Yes.  In 1992 Director Higginson of the

 3       Department of Water Resources established a moratorium

 4       on new appropriations in the Snake River Basin,

 5       including surface and groundwater upstream from Weiser,

 6       which is on the Snake River across from Oregon, so on

 7       the western side of the state.

 8                 And that moratorium was in response to a

 9       period of drought in the state of Idaho in which stream

10       flows were down, so reliance on groundwater

11       appropriations became greater and the maintenance of

12       minimum stream flows, particularly the one at Weiser,

13       was becoming difficult to accomplish.

14                 And so the first step there in making sure

15       that the minimum stream flow was maintained was to make

16       sure we weren't exacerbating the problem by issuing new

17       water right approvals.

18                 As conditions changed, "conditions" meaning

19       precipitation and snow pack over the years, that

20       moratorium was modified, first to carve out the nontrust

21       water area and establish a separate moratorium there,

22       and then to back the end point of the remaining piece of

23       the moratorium up to King Hill, which is upstream from

24       Swan Falls.

25                 And so the way things sit now, is that since
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 1       1992 there has been the moratorium, in its modified form

 2       now, that extends across the trust water area and

 3       includes tributary basins, such as the entire Wood River

 4       Basin, the entire Little Lost and Big Lost River Basins.

 5                 And in the nontrust water area, the moratorium

 6       order there had some language that was supported by

 7       legislation that caused it to be in place until 1997.

 8       That language was a little bit ambiguous, but the

 9       Department has since interpreted that to mean that the

10       moratorium in the nontrust water area upstream from

11       Milner has expired and there is no moratorium in place

12       there.  However, there have been delivery calls made in

13       that area by surface water users against groundwater and

14       other appropriators.

15                 And the conclusion of the Department is that

16       for the most part there isn't water available for

17       appropriation without jeopardizing the ability of the

18       senior surface water users to receive their full

19       supplies.  And so even though there is no moratorium in

20       the nontrust water area, a water user in the nontrust

21       water area would have to show the Department that there

22       actually is some water that could be appropriated

23       without causing injury to the senior water users or that

24       user would have to mitigate for the potential injury to

25       senior surface water users.
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 1             Q.  And, Mr. Keen, do you know if permit number

 2       35-8359 was affected by the execution and issuance of

 3       moratoriums in 1992 by Director Higginson?

 4             A.  Yes.  The permit had been issued by the time

 5       the moratorium went into place.  But in 1994 Director

 6       Higginson issued an order, I believe it was called a

 7       temporary stay in development, in which he required

 8       permit holders who -- in the trust water area who have

 9       not yet submitted proof of beneficial use to either

10       submit proof of beneficial use indicating that they had

11       completed their development, or to show that they have

12       made a substantial investment in development of their

13       permit.

14                 I don't remember what that threshold was for

15       substantial, seems like it was $15,000 or $25,000,

16       something like that.  I don't remember that precise

17       number.  Or the third option was to request an ongoing

18       stay in development until circumstances changed.

19                 And so Mr. Kugler's permit, if I remember

20       correctly, ultimately received a stay in development, a

21       long-term stay, and then that was extended through or

22       requests for extension of time to submit proof of

23       beneficial use, if I recall correctly.  And I don't

24       remember how many of those extensions there might have

25       been.
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 1                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I don't have any

 2       other questions for Mr. Keen.

 3                 Mr. Kugler, do you wish to cross-examine Mr.

 4       Keen regarding new information?

 5   

 6                              EXAMINATION

 7       QUESTIONS BY MR. KUGLER:

 8             Q.  Well, I was wondering when these rules that he

 9       talked about to begin with were adopted, that you were

10       talking about, as far as trust waters were concerned.

11                 Do you know the specific date?

12             A.  The water appropriation rules were first

13       adopted in 1986 or thereabouts, if I remember correctly,

14       and I think maybe modified slightly the year after.  I

15       remember reading something about two years in the

16       mid-1980s when the rules were adopted and then adjusted

17       in the next legislative session.  So I think it was '86

18       and '87, but I could be off by a year or two there.

19             Q.  Does this list that you have in this

20       particular document include issuance of permits from

21       nontrust waters as well, or is it all trust water only?

22             A.  This list is only what the Department

23       considers to be trust water.  There are no -- the points

24       of diversion are within the trust water area.

25             Q.  But you indicated that a line is within the
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 1       trust area?  Do you know what the boundary lines are in

 2       that particular area specifically?

 3             A.  Yes.  Yours is within the trust water area,

 4       but it is close to the boundary line.  It's about --

 5             Q.  You talked about the north boundary.  What

 6       about the west boundary?

 7             A.  Well, at that location the boundary between

 8       trust and nontrust runs on a line trending mainly

 9       east-west but a little bit north-south.  So if you

10       picture it coming past American Falls Reservoir on the

11       north side, it runs northeast to southwest.  And your

12       point of diversion for your permit is on the north, or I

13       guess you could say northwest side of that line within

14       the trust water area, and it's about three to four miles

15       from that line.

16             Q.  Both north and west?  I mean, the line crosses

17       this way on a rectangle.  There is a square corner up in

18       there somewhere.

19             A.  If you took the most direct line

20       southeastward, that would be three to four miles.  If

21       you went directly south, it would be a little more than

22       that.  If you went directly eastward, it would be

23       considerably more than that, if I remember correctly.

24             Q.  Now, are there permits that were issued

25       between 1984 and 1990 that are not on that particular
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 1       list that cover this general area?

 2             A.  Yes.  Yes, there were permits that were issued

 3       in that time frame that would not have been reprocessed

 4       under the trust water processing established in the

 5       rules, because the development would have been completed

 6       by the time the trust water processing began or there

 7       would have been a substantial investment made and the

 8       right -- the permit holders would have been asked to

 9       provide evidence of that, if they had not already

10       submitted proof of beneficial use.

11             Q.  Between 1984 and 1990 could you provide a list

12       of those documents, of those permits?  Could it be

13       extracted from Department records?

14             A.  I think it certainly could.  I'm not sure how

15       much effort it would take.  I would have to think

16       through how we would identify those, but I would think

17       it would certainly be possible.

18             Q.  Well, I'm thinking of between -- up until that

19       July date of 1990 when my permit was actually physically

20       issued, the application being filed much earlier, of

21       course, than that, when I was trying to develop the land

22       in the '80s, '84 and '85.  You don't have any idea what

23       number that might be?

24             A.  I don't right off the top of my head.  If I

25       had to ballpark it, I would say probably hundreds, but I
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 1       don't know how many hundreds.  And that is just a guess

 2       based on my experience issuing water right licenses for

 3       those in the 1990s.

 4             Q.  Okay.  But I'm talking about on or before July

 5       of 1990.

 6             A.  Yes.  If you are asking about permits issued

 7       before July of 1990 and after some date in the early

 8       '80s and those permits were not reprocessed and did not

 9       get the term limit, like I said, I would guess it would

10       be in the hundreds, but I don't know how many hundreds.

11             Q.  You don't know how many of these permits

12       combined would have a priority date on and after 1984?

13             A.  Yeah, I don't.  I'm sure we could figure that

14       out, but I don't know the number for sure.

15             Q.  And, of course, if I were ready to develop, my

16       priority date would go back and revert to the 1984

17       filing, does it not?

18             A.  Yes, typically, unless proof of beneficial use

19       is submitted late, the priority date stays the same as

20       the application date.

21             Q.  And when you are talking about proof being

22       submitted late, we both know that I'm looking for a well

23       now, and I can't submit a proof without it, can I?

24             A.  That's correct.

25             Q.  And the Department will not give me a well
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 1       permit to this date, have they?

 2             A.  You know, I haven't been involved in those

 3       discussions, but that is my understanding, yes.

 4                 MR. KUGLER:    Thank you.  Nothing further.

 5                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you, Mr.

 6       Keen.

 7                 I will next call Liz Cresto to come forward.

 8                 Raise your right-hand, please.

 9                             LIZ CRESTO,

10       first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said

11       cause, testified as follows:

12                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you.  Please

13       be seated.

14   

15                             EXAMINATION

16       QUESTIONS BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:

17             Q.  I probably ought to give you the opportunity,

18       I didn't give Mr. Keen.  State your name for the record,

19       if you would.

20             A.  Liz Cresto.

21             Q.  And what is your employment?

22             A.  I work here at IDWR.  I'm a technical

23       hydrologist.

24             Q.  Working as a technical hydrologist, what do

25       you do?
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 1             A.  I'm mainly involved with surface water, so one

 2       of my jobs is to monitor the flows of the Snake River

 3       near Murphy.

 4             Q.  And Ms. Cresto, I'll hand you a document that

 5       we referred to earlier during Mr. Keen's testimony, and

 6       it's titled "IDWR Staff Memorandum."  Are you acquainted

 7       with this document?

 8             A.  Yes.

 9             Q.  And did you assist in its preparation?

10             A.  Yes.

11             Q.  And can you explain what part of this report

12       that you prepared?

13             A.  I prepared -- within the document are several

14       memos, and I prepared a memo on the flows at Snake River

15       near Murphy, 1980 to 2010.

16                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Is her voice being

17       picked up, Mr. Weaver?

18                 MR. MATT WEAVER:  It is.

19                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Thanks.

20                 If you could speak up, Ms. Cresto, I'd

21       appreciate it.

22                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.

23             Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  And can you

24       explain your -- the work that you've conducted over the

25       past few years related to monitoring the flows at Murphy
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 1       Gage?

 2             A.  So for, I think since 2005, I've been

 3       monitoring the flows of the Snake River near Murphy.

 4       And what I do is I look at the minimum flows, which is

 5       3900 cfs from April through October, and then 5600 cfs

 6       from November through March.  And I monitor those

 7       flows -- the physical flows on the Snake River near

 8       Murphy to make sure we are not hitting the minimum.

 9                 In addition to the minimum, we term it a

10       reference flow, because we also look at making sure that

11       during the flow augmentation season that flow

12       augmentation water that is released from Milner or is a

13       part of the Bell Rapids out by the Bureau, that that

14       water physically makes it past the Murphy Gage.

15             Q.  So that augmentation water is considered as

16       what on top of the minimum flow?

17             A.  We call it a reference flow, but we consider

18       that we need to protect that water, kind of as if it

19       were a minimum flow, because with the obligation to

20       shepherd the Bureau's water down and out of the state.

21       I'm not sure if there is a formal agreement for that.

22             Q.  So if you were characterizing the reference

23       flow, it is a flow rate that includes the minimum stream

24       flows, as I understand.

25             A.  Correct.
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 1             Q.  At Murphy.  Plus, some additional flow on top

 2       of it that is being released either as storage or other

 3       water that is supposed to move through the system that

 4       can't be counted as part of the minimum; right?

 5             A.  Correct.

 6             Q.  And so even though the flows at Murphy are

 7       higher than the minimums, that additional flow can't

 8       count toward the minimum, is my understanding.

 9             A.  There is a little bit of -- I guess if we were

10       to fall below the reference line, we might not be

11       violating the Swan Falls agreement, the 3900, but we

12       would be, I guess, violating our obligation to the

13       Bureau.

14             Q.  This water that you are talking about, it's in

15       addition to the minimum flow, it's intended to flow

16       downstream past the Murphy Gage for what purpose?

17             A.  For both the minimum and the flow augmentation

18       purposes.

19             Q.  Okay.  And can you tell me why it is that

20       you've been monitoring these flows?

21             A.  Because we've had numerous drought years and

22       we've come pretty close to that reference line or the

23       minimum flow line.  So I mainly closely monitor them

24       this time of year in the drought years, not this year,

25       but other years this time of year typically the flows
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 1       dip down in the early summer, and that is our main

 2       period of concern.

 3             Q.  Are you aware of any times when the Department

 4       has been concerned about flows below the minimum or very

 5       near the minimum?

 6             A.  I think  -- in this memo I only said on

 7       December 14th, 1987 that the flows actually dropped

 8       below the minimum.  But in 2005 and in -- I know in

 9       2005, 2007 we came very close to that reference line, so

10       the minimum plus the flow augmentation.  And then in

11       2007, I believe, we actually sent out letters warning

12       people that we are really close to that reference line

13       or that there is the potential to shut off, I believe,

14       groundwater users.

15             Q.  And so this may be a difficult question, but

16       you can answer it or not, depending on how comfortable

17       you are.  But if the flows at Murphy Gage or the

18       reference flow dropped below the minimums, then what

19       would you anticipate the Department might do?

20                 MR. KUGLER:  Object to the question; form and

21       speculation.

22             Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  Okay.  Do you

23       have any acquaintance with what the Department has done

24       in the past?

25             A.  I just have the acquaintance with the
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 1       reference -- or the warning letter that was sent out.

 2             Q.  And what did it warn?

 3                 MR. KUGLER:  Objection about the best

 4       evidence.

 5                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I'll overrule

 6       that because she's acquainted with the letter, she can

 7       always talk about what --

 8                 THE WITNESS:  It was just a warning to

 9       potentially shut people off if the flows continued to be

10       below the reference line.

11             Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  And this would

12       be users from what sources of water?

13             A.  The groundwater users and junior priority to

14       the minimum flow.

15             Q.  And this would be within the trust water area?

16             A.  I believe so, yes.

17                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Mr. Kugler, I don't

18       have any more questions.  Do you have questions for Ms.

19       Cresto?

20                 MR. KUGLER:  I just want to thank her a lot

21       for enjoying the weather this year.  It's wonderful when

22       you see that.  But I do have one simple question for you

23       with respect to that.

24   

25   
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 1       ///

 2                              EXAMINATION

 3       QUESTIONS BY MR. KUGLER:

 4             Q.  You are talking about the shut-off warnings,

 5       which of course is in the overall water case decision

 6       type of thing as far as priority is concerned.  But are

 7       you familiar with my filing permit in this proceeding?

 8             A.  Yeah.

 9             Q.  So I would have considerable priority over

10       quite a number of those permit holders, would I not, if

11       I get to drill a well?

12             A.  I'm not really sure how that plays in -- I was

13       not involved in developing the list of the warning

14       letters and how they go through the priorities.  I just

15       know they send out a general list.

16             Q.  So your comments in general strictly relate to

17       that one little portion of this, referring to that

18       aspect of it.

19             A.  Yes.

20                 MR. KUGLER:  Thank you.  That's all.

21                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  John, I would be

22       happy to recall Shelley Keen.

23                 MR. KUGLER:  No, that's okay.

24                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  He would probably

25       know some of that.
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 1                 MR. KUGLER:  That's all right.

 2                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you, Ms.

 3       Cresto.

 4                 Now, John, the last witness is Allen Wylie,

 5       and I'll just have Allen come up and swear him in.  And

 6       I want to tell you, to just give you a preview of why

 7       Allen is testifying.

 8                             ALLEN WYLIE,

 9       first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said

10       cause, testified as follows:

11                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you.  Please

12       be seated.

13                 The reason that I asked Allen to participate

14       and prepare a portion for this memo was because as a

15       result of where your point of diversion is located, it

16       has impacts, the diversion of that groundwater, both to

17       the trust water and the nontrust water areas, based on

18       modeling that the Department has done.

19                 And so I want Allan to testify about it and

20       put it in the record because there is a question, and I

21       think this may cut in your favor more than against you.

22       I'm serious.

23                 MR. KUGLER:  I understand.  I appreciate that.

24       And after the hearing aspect I would like to visit a

25       little bit with a couple of the individuals if possible.
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 1                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I think that is

 2       great.  But what we have is we have a trust water area

 3       that is very fixed in both rule and law and in --

 4                 MR. KUGLER:  I'm aware of that.

 5                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  We have a lot of

 6       law that doesn't necessarily support that very strict

 7       stringent definition.

 8                 MR. KUGLER:  Yes.

 9                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And so it's a

10       dichotomy somewhat to me as the director and as hearing

11       officer about what to do with it.  And like I say, it

12       may cut -- in fact, I think it does, his testimony

13       probably will cut more into your favor than against it.

14                 MR. KUGLER:  I could see that possibility.

15                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But I want to have

16       it there, because if I don't then we don't have a

17       complete record.

18                 MR. KUGLER:  I appreciate that aspect of it

19       too.

20                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.

21                 MR. KUGLER:  I'm just looking at the other

22       wheel.

23                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.  Okay.  So

24       let's just go through it here.

25   
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 1       ///

 2                              EXAMINATION

 3       QUESTIONS BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:

 4             Q.  Mr. Wylie, will you state your full name

 5       please for the record.

 6             A.  Allan Wylie.

 7             Q.  And will you explain what you do in your work

 8       here for the Department.

 9             A.  I do groundwater modeling.  I've done a

10       groundwater model for the Eastern Snake Plain Aquifer,

11       and for the Spokane RAFN model.

12                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Do you want me to

13       go through and establish him as an expert witness?

14                 MR. KUGLER:  Not at all.  I would love to talk

15       to him about Spokane RAFN.

16                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I can tell

17       you that he's appeared at various hearings, contest case

18       hearings for the Department.

19                 MR. KUGLER:  I know the name.

20                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So I'll dispense

21       with it.

22             Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  But, Mr. Wylie,

23       are you acquainted with the report that is in front of

24       you titled "IDWR Staff Memorandum"?

25             A.  I am.
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 1             Q.  And you prepared a portion of the memorandum?

 2             A.  I did.

 3             Q.  And can you explain what you prepared for the

 4       memorandum?

 5             A.  I was asked to do a modeling analysis of Mr.

 6       Kugler's permit, and I went through and found the number

 7       of acres that he was requesting to irrigate.

 8                 I selected -- from the permits I found the

 9       location he was intending to put his well.  Then I took

10       the average crop consumptive use and I subtracted off

11       average precipitation and applied that result to his

12       acres, and then put that stress on the aquifer at his

13       well and ran a modeling analysis and using the model

14       determined where his impacts would be realized along the

15       Snake River.

16             Q.  Can you back up a little bit and explain what

17       the model is and what it's intended to try to simulate?

18             A.  The model, we divided up the aquifer into one

19       mile by one mile grids and each grid has different

20       stresses and different physical properties.  And these

21       different stresses and different physical properties

22       allow the model to steer the impacts in what we hope is

23       something approaching the way the real world situation

24       is.

25                 And the intent of that is that this results in
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 1       a better tool for administering water than just having a

 2       bunch of experts at a hearing argue about where the

 3       impacts might be realized.

 4                 And the model was constructed by many experts,

 5       representatives from Idaho Power, the Bureau, other

 6       people sent experts, some people participate on their

 7       own.  And the intent of that is to give everybody common

 8       ground for this tool to use to see how the impacts are

 9       distributed along the Snake River.

10             Q.  Somebody inputting the information that you

11       explained earlier into the model, and will you go back

12       and explain what those inputs would then simulate using

13       the model with respect to Mr. Kugler's application -- or

14       his permit?  I'm sorry.

15             A.  I came up with just under 540 acre feet per

16       year would be consumptively used if Mr. Kugler's permit

17       were fully developed.  Is that what you are asking?

18             Q.  And then that would be how much water would be

19       consumptively used.  But then what are the simulated

20       impacts on the Snake River and reaches above and below

21       Milner?  Because I think the report probably shows that

22       information.

23             A.  Do you want all 11 reaches or just -- I've got

24       490.5 above Milner.  So based on Mr. Keen's that would

25       be in the nontrust.  And then 49 acre feet per year
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 1       would be below Milner, and that, as I understand from

 2       Mr. Keen, would be in the trusts.

 3             Q.  And you referred to various reaches.  I don't

 4       want to delve too far into this subject because I'm not

 5       sure how relevant it is.  But the model apparently

 6       simulates through the pumping depletions to various

 7       identified reaches of the Snake River.

 8             A.  There is a total of 11 reaches.  Do you want

 9       me to go through all of them or --

10             Q.  No, just to sort of generally explain, there

11       are some reaches above, some below.

12             A.  There are five reaches above Milner and six

13       reaches below Milner.  So that is just areas where the

14       model is totaling up the impact from whatever stress is

15       being applied to the model.

16             Q.  And the impacts or the simulated impacts that

17       you are explaining would occur within what time frame if

18       Mr. Kugler's pumping?

19             A.  This would be steady state, so that is a long

20       time after full build out.  I did do transient graphs,

21       which simulate how long it would take to realize that,

22       and I went out 100 years.

23                 And in most cases, particularly below Milner,

24       it takes quite a few years before -- some of them you

25       never even get a 10th of a cfs impact.  I think if I
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 1       look back here to the full build out, it doesn't get to

 2       half of a -- it doesn't get to a 1/10th of a cfs.  It's

 3       less than five years before it gets to -- before it gets

 4       up to a 100th of a cfs.

 5             Q.  Is there more information that you would like

 6       to add or discuss regarding the simulations and the

 7       model itself?

 8             A.  No, I can't think of anything.

 9                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

10                 Mr. Kugler, again, the reason for the

11       presentation was to lend to the record the expertise

12       that the Department --

13                 MR. KUGLER:  I understand that aspect of it

14       from that standpoint.  I was looking at other things.  I

15       have no questions for him.  Thank you.

16                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Thank you,

17       Mr. Wylie.

18                 That is all the information that we had

19       prepared in support of the staff memorandum, John, and

20       you are welcome to present whatever additional evidence

21       you want to regarding --

22                 MR. KUGLER:   Let me just briefly state, and

23       I'll leave that for your standpoint, because I don't

24       think that you have given any thought to or looked at

25       the impact.  My recollection -- and I'm getting old, I
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 1       don't remember a lot anymore.  But there was a statute

 2       before a lot of these rules and regulations came in

 3       enacted by the legislature, and I think it's 42-223, if

 4       I remember right.  And you didn't address that in your

 5       order, and I would like that addressed at this time if

 6       you believe it has any impact as far as the decision is

 7       concerned.

 8                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  What do you believe

 9       the statute says?

10                 MR. KUGLER:  I think that is the one that

11       protected my rights as if I had gone in and had a well

12       permit issued to me originally in 1984, and protects it

13       just as existed as it was first issued between '84 and

14       '85, '89 for that matter, a five-year period.

15                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  I don't

16       recall that.

17                 MR. KUGLER:  That has to do -- because this

18       statute was enacted prior to the moratorium statute, and

19       I think that is a legal issue, may or may not be

20       involved eventually.  As I said, I want to chat briefly

21       with these gentlemen here and talk about something else,

22       part of it.

23                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Is the statute

24       identified in any of your briefing?

25                 MR. KUGLER:  I doubt it because -- not to my
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 1       recollection.  I think I argued it orally at that last

 2       reconsideration hearing.

 3                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I would appreciate

 4       a direct reference, because what you are talking

 5       about --

 6                 MR. KUGLER:  I'll get it to you in writing.

 7                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Additional

 8       arguments or evidence you wish to present, Mr. Kugler?

 9                 MR. KUGLER:  No, no, nothing further, no.

10                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I know, John, that

11       you are concerned, again, about the second portion of

12       what we talked about and that is that -- and you

13       presented evidence at the first hearing regarding what

14       you felt was a significant expenditure of money on your

15       part for development.

16                 MR. KUGLER:  Right.

17                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And I certainly

18       want to look at that as well, but I know that

19       information is in the file and was presented at the

20       initial hearing.  And so certainly if you want to

21       expound or expand on that particular issue --

22                 MR. KUGLER:  No, no, I blubbered too much at

23       that time.

24                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Well, I hope

25       you recognize at least in the presentation of the
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 1       evidence that is in the record, part of my reason for

 2       going through the more formal presentation was to set

 3       the stage for what I think is an important issue and

 4       some degree it is a test case for me and --

 5                 MR. KUGLER:  Well, there is no question that

 6       this is a unique proceeding, but the advantage of it is

 7       you'll never have another one.

 8                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Maybe.

 9                 MR. KUGLER:  From what I know about other

10       pending (inaudible), I don't anticipate one of this

11       particular nature.  Mine is unique.  Because some of the

12       controversies that are out there have been pending for a

13       long time, even before.  And secondly, those newer ones

14       that are developing by those three or four other people

15       who attempt to prolong are not in the same position as

16       mine by a long ways because of how late they filed to

17       begin with.

18                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I think you are

19       right in that smaller context, but in the larger view we

20       have, and this is part of the reason all of this came

21       in, we have many, many water rights right now --

22                 MR. KUGLER:  From what I see now, what your

23       future applications are, you are right.  I go back to

24       1962 when I argued for the three Idaho Power licenses

25       before the National Park Association.  And I argued the
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 1       State's position as far as granting the licenses at that

 2       point in time, so I know a little bit about downstream

 3       flow.

 4                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Who were you

 5       representing then?

 6                 MR. KUGLER:  The State of Idaho.

 7                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Were you working

 8       for the Attorney General?

 9                 MR. KUGLER:  As a special appointment, yep,

10       because I worked for the Commission.

11                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That is very

12       interesting.

13                 MR. KUGLER:  A long time ago, almost 50 years.

14                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I know that.  But

15       my concern in this is we have many, many water rights

16       that have term limits expiring.

17                 MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  Well, I see where that

18       comes into a different -- a little bit different play

19       than mine, but you might get some guidance if I go

20       forward, yes.

21                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, because many

22       of those people, if we approve your water right or we

23       approve it with some limited mitigation requirement,

24       many of them might come in and hire somebody to apply

25       the model to it and say:  My impact down below isn't all

0050

 1       to trust water.  It's not all depletion to Milner.

 2                 MR. KUGLER:  I don't think that is open on any

 3       of those that I'm aware of anyway.

 4                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  It's not right now,

 5       but we have many of them that we will be going through a

 6       review, and we may be requiring of them something to

 7       ensure that the minimum flows at Murphy are maintained,

 8       that Liz talked about, because we were down some years

 9       bumping against it.

10                 So those are the kinds of issues that we are

11       looking at, and consequently in some respects what you

12       are presenting is a test case for the Department and

13       maybe for --

14                 MR. KUGLER:  I don't want to make it a test, I

15       would rather resolve it without that aspect of it.  That

16       is why I wanted to have a hearing a couple years ago, as

17       my CRP was expiring in 2009.

18                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, we knew it

19       was on the rise even then, that is part of the reason

20       for the delay.

21                 Okay.  If we don't have anything further,

22       thank you and we'll close the record.  And you are

23       welcome to talk to them.

24                 MR. KUGLER:  Yeah, I just want to chat a

25       little bit about a change of point of diversion, as a
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 1       matter of fact.

 2                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So you can stop the

 3       tape.

 4                 (Off the record.)

 5                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I've reopened the

 6       record -- are we recording, Matt?

 7                 MR. MATT WEAVER:  Yes.

 8                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I've reopened the

 9       record just to clarify the representation here today.

10                 Mr. Kugler, will you please state for the

11       record your intention regarding your own representation

12       here as contested.

13                 MR. KUGLER:  I have from the beginning been

14       appearing pro se, and as far as this proceeding is

15       concerned have done so.  I have not authorized anyone to

16       make any filings with the Department for me.

17                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  And Jerry

18       Rigby is --

19                 MR. KUGLER:  And Jerry Rigby specifically.

20                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Is not counsel of

21       record.

22                 MR. KUGLER:  Is not counsel of record.

23                 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  All right.

24       Thank you very much for clarifying.  And we'll go off

25       the record again.   (Hearing Concluded.)
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1 INDEX 1  director.
2 2 And if you recall in September when | hadn't
3 SHELLEY KEEN PAGE 3 received anything, the director was there and you said:
4 Examination by Hearing Officer Spackman 14 | 4 | know why you are here. | was with my son there. And
5 Examination by Mr. Kugler 28 5  when | walked into your room you said: Oh, | know why
6 LIZ CRESTO 6  youare here. Somehow this got misplaced and you pulled
7 Examdination by Hearing Officer Spackman 32 | 7  theorder, | believe, my request for the review out and
8 Examination by Mr. Kugler 38 8 said: Oh, thisiswhy you are here.
9 ALLAN WYLIE 9 And then subseguently there we were going to
10 Examination by Hearing Officer Spackman 41 |10  setahearing and last fall you were going to set a
11 11 hearing. In September said, if | had special date, let
12 12 itgo. Itwasn't set. And the next thing | know --
13 13 because you said you would go ahead and set it
14 14  immediately in September or October, it wasn't done
15 15  becausel didn't have a special date, asfar asjust
16 16  coming down whenever you could, and that didn't happen.
17 17 The next thing | know | get this directive and
18 18  ahearing date for this hearing today. And | think,
19 19  frankly, was prompted by someone who had no business
20 20  chatting with you about this proceeding.
21 21 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Wdll, | want to
22 22 tell youthat --
23 23 MR. KUGLER: Because he sent me abill with a
24 24 charge for communicating with you, personaly, Mr. Jerry
25 25  Righy.
Page 3 Page 5
1 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: January 2008, so 1 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Wéll, I've not
2  it'sbeen awhile. Anyway, John requested a 2 conversed with Jerry Rigby directly about this matter at
3 reconsideration, and after review of (inaudible) grounds 3 Al
4 that were set forth, the Department and the director 4 MR. KUGLER: Wséll I'm glad to hear that. |
5  granted the petition. And I'm looking at the order 5  don't know what he did, but it seemsto melikeit wasa
6  granting the augmentation hearing. 6 20 or 30 minute phone call he billed mefor, and |
7 And, John, you received a copy of the staff 7  didn't even hire him. | made inquiries to whether |
8  memorandum? 8  should or shouldn't, and | never got aresponse from him
9 MR. KUGLER: | did seethat, and | don't 9 ever.
10  understand it, frankly. In fact, that was not involved 10 So I've been getting no responses constantly
11  inmy record. It wason the appeal for review by 11  for three years when I've been after it trying to get
12 (inaudible). 12 theright to go ahead and proceed with my water,
13 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | understand, but |13  drilling awell.
14 inwhat wasin the order granting the augmentation 14 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Let me go back and
15 hearing it says, "Based on this review the director 15 let'slook at what wasfiled, John. Thisis, at least
16  findsthat there was no presentation or opportunity for 16  what | have, thisistitled "Exception to Memorandum."”
17  presentation of hearing of evidence regarding the effect 17  Isthat the document that you are referring to as to
18  of injury or senior priority water rights that might be 18  your request?
19  caused by the development of the beneficial use proposed 19 MR. KUGLER: Correct.
20 by Cooper." 20 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Thenyou lista
21 MR. KUGLER: | understand that. But, however, 21 number of exceptions?
22 part of the record there was evidence prior and a prior 22 MR. KUGLER: Correct.
23 existing order with respect toit. Andall I. 23 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And by the way,
24 Asked for wasto review therecord. That iswhat | 24 thiswas deemed to be a request for reconsideration, a
25  asked for was a hearing on review by the appeal to the 25  petition for reconsideration?

208- 345-9611

M & M COURT REPORTI NG SERVI CE,

I NC. 800- 234-9611





Page 3 (Pages 6-9)

Audi o Transcription - Status Conference 6/ 14/ 2011
Page 6 Page 8
1 MR. KUGLER: | filed arequest for review 1 wasissued, it'smy opinion that the record was
2 withthedirector, and that iswhat you've even spoken 2 deficient in this particular areaand that you should
3 of asbeing when you didn't get it set -- 3 have the opportunity to present evidence and that the
4 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: I'm sorry. 4  Department as well should have the opportunity to put on
5 MR. KUGLER: --whenyou didn't get it set 5  evidenceregarding those particular issues. And | won't
6  before heretired and quit comingin. 6 create afurther deficiency by not having the evidence
7 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Yeah, thepetition | 7  intherecord.
8  for reconsideration was denied. Then you filed the 8 So from my perspective this hearing today is
9  exception. 9  for the purpose of bringing this document into the
10 MR. KUGLER: That's correct. 10  record, aswell as supporting information regarding this
1 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And thisisthe 11 information, so that al of that isin therecord. And
12 request. "The applicant respectfully asks that the 12 thenif you want to appeal the matter, you can appeal
13 director grant reconsideration of the hearing officer's 13 it -- and the information, a reviewing court would have
14 order and provide applicant with the opportunity to 14  thenecessary information.
15 submit such other evidence as might be requested or 15 Otherwise, in my opinion, I'm set up for a
16  considered, and upon conclusion of the same grant to 16  remand to go through the same process down the road if,
17 applicant the right to proceed with the development of 17  infact, you don't agree with decision.
18  thefarmland subject to the priority rights and all 18 MR. KUGLER: Well, | understand where you are
19  senior water right holders that may be affected, if 19  coming fromin that particular position, | do. Asl
20 any." 20  say, my objection isaso aformality asfar asthe
21 So as | read that request, it says "provide 21 record is concerned, because we had a hearing, and that
22 the applicant with the opportunity to submit such other 22 istherecord which | had taken forward. Yes, | was
23 evidence as might be requested or considered and upon 23 granted achance to present additional evidence, but
24 conclusion of the same grant.” So based on the 24 that didn't extend to the State, that was from my
25  exceptionsthat you filed, John, and -- 25  standpoint.
Page 7 Page 9
1 MR. KUGLER: | understand that. 1 Had | presented some, yes, you could have
2 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And so -- 2 offered some. That isthe argument that | will present
3 MR. KUGLER: My point being is, that after 3 onthat particular position. | don't even understand
4 thinking and reviewing it, I'm not planning on 4  what that isabout. | can't read it. | don't know it.
5  presenting any evidence today. | want to just resubmit 5 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Well, and | guess
6  my thoughts as to what has been missed by you when you 6  my intention this morning, John, isto put each of these
7  were ahearing officer and now sitting as a director. 7  witnesses on and just very generally ask them some
8 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: But what | intend 8  questionsto explain what isin the documents so you
9 todo, honestly, isto have each of these people who 9  understand what is here.
10  participated in the preparation of this document, they 10 MR. KUGLER: Well, | appreciate that part, but
11  areheretoday -- 11 | don't want to waive my right of objection accordingly.
12 MR. KUGLER: Weéll, | object asfar asthe 12 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. And | agree,
13  record is concerned to any presentation of evidence 13  you certainly have the right to object, but | want this
14 other than after | submit some, and I'm not submitting 14  tobeafull and complete record at this point. And
15 any, and | think the rule providesthat. They let you 15 that iswhy I've asked staff to prepare the memorandum
16  doit by way of arebuttal type of thing, because this 16  and that iswhy I've asked that you be here today. And
17 wasfrom my review of the record, and that is not the 17  you are entitled to ask them after they present their
18  record. 18  testimony -- it will be more narrative, than anything --
19 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: But we are not 19  to ask them questions about the information that is
20  recording yet. Arewe? 20  contained herein on cross-examination.
21 MR. MATT WEAVER: | was recording. 21 MR. KUGLER: All right.
22 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. That'sfine. |22 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: All right. With
23 It'saninformal discussion. That'sfine. I'm happy to 23 that introduction, and maybe we ought to introduce
24 haveit on the record. 24 everybody here again.
25 For the record, John, based on the order that 25 My name is Gary Spackman, I'm the hearing
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Page 10 Page 12
1 officer and the interim director of the Department. 1 permitissued to me. Anditismy position that it is,
2  ThisisMatt Weaver to my right, he will be recording 2 and| think from that particular standpoint, the record
3 thetestimony today. And Mr. Kugler is here, John 3 didevaluate that | should have been granted aright --
4 Kugler, we've been conversing. And also heretoday is 4 awell right to drill awell and have awell driller
5  Shelley Keen, Allan Wylie, Liz Cresto, and Craig Saxton. 5  apply for adrilling permit on this particular ground.
6 And the record has already captured the 6 And also that not only isit relevant, even if
7  discussion about the proceedings today. | won't need to 7  itwererelevant to this particular proceeding, the
8  repeat them. Today isthetime and place that was set 8  mitigating factors which do, in fact, exist within here
9 for thisaugmentation hearing. 9  asto how much money | had expended and how much time
10 Do we have any other matters to discuss before 10  and effort | had spent trying to get that well done
11 wego ontherecord? 11  beforeweeven tried to put it into CRP. And | had a--
12 MR. KUGLER: | just want one question with 12 | think the record showsthat | had a major investment
13 you, Sit. 13  inequipment that awell driller asked me to acquire and
14 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Yes. 14  then he stoleit and sold it, that type of thing, all of
15 MR. KUGLER: That is, this ground wasin CRP 15  which arefactorsthere. And | think those overcome any
16  when thiswater right in 1990 was granted, and that | 16  other difficulties and that | should have theright to
17 think isapart of the Department record. But there was 17  havethewell that came as a part of the issuance of the
18  aCRP contract along the land; am | correct? 18  permit.
19 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: That ismy 19 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Weéll, those
20  recollection. 20  certainly areissuesthat need to be addressed.
21 MR. KUGLER: That ismy recollection. 21 MR. KUGLER: Yesh.
22 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Let mejust-- |22 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And | don't want to
23 MR. KUGLER: Because | was going to bring the 23 discount those issues.
24 CRP contract itself physically, but | believe | 24 MR. KUGLER: Yeah.
25 tedtified to that during the prior hearing. 25 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: The other issuesin
Page 11 Page 13
1 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Thatiswhat | 1  my opinion that relate to thisare: What isthe
2 recdl. And, John, let me give you an opportunity, 2 relationship of your permit with other permits that
3  first of al, to make an opening statement, you might 3 either may have been allowed to develop or may have been
4 want to do that here. And then | would like -- well, | 4 held for whatever reason? What are the policies of the
5  will call the witnesses that participated in the 5  Department? What isthelaw? And then what are the
6  preparation of these documents, because | don't think 6  impacts?
7  it'sappropriatethat | take thisinto the record 7 MR. KUGLER: Well, | understand that, yeah.
8  without you having the opportunity to have them here and 8 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: So those are
9  examinethem. 9  important issuesaswell. And | know you feel they are
10 MR. KUGLER: WEéll, okay, | understand. 10 irrelevant, but to develop afull and complete record, |
11 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Andthenfollowing |11  want to have al of that information in place.
12 their testimony then you'll have an opportunity to 12 MR. KUGLER: Well, the only rebuttal or
13 present whatever you want to present. And from my 13  additional statement | would make in that regard is: My
14 perspective, there won't be any kind of rebuttal from 14  position would beis that the record already had a
15  the Department. I'm just trying to bring evidence into 15  finding in that regard of record.
16  therecord. 16 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: There certainly was
17 So let's start, Mr. Kugler, do you wish to 17 afinding that there wasn't supporting evidence in the
18  make an opening statement? 18  record, and that's part of the reason why this order
19 MR. KUGLER: Briefly itis, | would start off 19  granting the augmentation hearing was issued.
20 by commenting with respect to that particular document. 20 With that opening statement, | will call
21 |think it'sirrelevant to the issue anyway, the 21 Shelley Keen. If you'll step forward, Mr. Keen. Takea
22 petitioninvolved here. So in addition to procedural 22 seat at the microphone and raise your right hand.
23 objection, | think it'sirrelevant on its face. 23 SHELLEY KEEN,
24 The question being here is whether or not | 24 first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said
25  wasentitled to drill awell asaresult of having a 25  cause, testified asfollows:
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1 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Thank you, please | 1  remember correctly, 3900 cfsfrom April through October,
2 beseated. 2 and 5600 cfsfrom November through March.
3 3 And the reason for that specific areaisthat
4 EXAMINATION 4 onthe downstream end near Murphy thereis an Idaho
5 QUESTIONSBY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: 5  Power Company dam and facility at Swan Falls where the
6 Q. Mr. Keen, I'll hand you a copy of what is 6  unsubordinated water right was, if | remember correctly,
7  identified as IDWR Staff Memorandum in the Matter of 7  about 8400 cfs.
8  Permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B. Kugler and 8 So commencing in 1977 there was alawsuit and
9 DianeK. Kugler. 9  severa thingsthat occurred, but it resulted in the
10 A. Thank you. 10  State of Idaho acquiring, in exchange for establishment
11 Q. Areyou aware or acquainted with this 11 of those minimum stream flows, the portion exceeding
12 document? 12 those minimums of Idaho Power Company's hydropower right
13 A. | am. 13 intrust and the opportunity to reallocate that trust
14 Q. Anditiscontained in thefiles of the 14  water for upstream development as long as that upstream
15  Department of Water Resources and in particular in the 15  developmentisin the public interest.
16  File35-08359. And you are aware that the director 16 Q. You referred to trust water being located in a
17  requested preparation of a staff memorandum? 17  particular area. Can you define that geographical area?
18 A. Yes. 18 A. Sure. As| mentioned before, it's the Snake
19 Q. And can you explain your participation in the 19  River and surface water and groundwater tributary to the
20  preparation of this memorandum? 20  Snake River from Murphy, which isin southwestern Idaho,
21 A. Yes. | wasasked to prepare alist of water 21 upstream to Milner Dam in south central 1daho on the
22 rightsthat have been issued in the trust water area and 22 SnakeRiver. And that area generally encompasses
23 which contain a condition of approval limiting them to a 23 groundwater across the Eastern Snake River Plain Aquifer
24 specificterm of years. And | did that and produced 24 andto some extent in tributary basins like the Wood
25  approximately a 15-page list of about 680 water right 25  River and the Lost River Basin, and then also some area
Page 15 Page 17
1  approvals containing those conditions from that trust 1 onthe south side of the Snake River extending across
2 water area. 2 theMagic Valey.
3 Q. Canyou explain your acquaintance with trust 3 Q. Arethere fixed boundaries that identify where
4 water, and if you could identify trust water and what it 4 groundwater or surface water is considered to be trust
5 isand whereit camefrom. | just want you to narrate 5  water?
6 thisinformation as best you can. | don't want to 6 A. Yes. That boundary isinthe Water
7 necessarily engagein avery rigid examination process. 7 Appropriation Rules, IDAPA 37-0308, if | remember
8 And, Mr. Kugler, if you have some objection 8  correctly, in an appendix in that areais described with
9  during the testimony, you are welcome to tender it at 9 metes and bounds and a map.
10 anytime 10 Q. Do you have any familiarity with the way in
1 MR. KUGLER: WEell, | have a standing objection 11 which the boundary was developed?
12 against dl of it. Thank you. 12 A. I'm not really familiar with exactly how that
13 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: So recognized. 13 wasdeveloped at thetime. | suspect there was some
14 Q. (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN) Mr. Keen? |14 modeling effort, but really | can't testify to extensive
15 A. Okay. Thank you. 15 knowledge of that.
16 Trust water as defined in the water 16 Q. And can you characterize the importance of
17  appropriation rules for the Department of Water 17  trust water areaasit relates to the entire Swan Falls
18  Resourcesisthat portion of an unsubordinated water 18  controversy and settlement that occurred statewide in
19  right for generating hydropower that isin excess of a 19  the'80s?
20  state-established minimum stream flow. 20 A. Yes. Theimportance of that wasthat if the
21 And in Idaho when we speak of trust water, we 21 unsubordinated hydropower right held by Idaho Power at
22 areusudly thinking of the water in the Snake River or 22 Swan Fals had to be honored, then there would have had
23 itstributaries, including groundwater from Milner Dam 23 tobelikely acurtailment of water rights throughout
24 where the minimum stream flow is zero, downstream to 24 thetrust water areain order to meet the 8400 cfs water
25  Murphy Gage where the minimum stream flows are, if | 25  right at Swan Falls.
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1 By entering into the agreement the State 1 opportunity periodically to evaluate whether those trust
2 avoided that delivery call and allowed water use to 2 water rightsremain in the public interest. When they
3 continue upstream from Swan Falls and across the Eastern 3  areinitialy reviewed, they are reviewed to make sure
4 Snake Plain Aquifer and a so enabled some additional 4  that they areindividually and collectively not going to
5  development of consumptive water uses with the use of 5  provideasignificant reduction to flows of the Snake
6 that trust water. 6 River. Andif they are found to probably cause a
7 Q. What was the importance of having a boundary 7  significant reduction, then there is a public interest
8 inadefined areafor that settlement? 8 review and criteriain code and the rules for the
9 A. Theimportance of having a boundary was for 9  director to conduct that public interest review.
10  proper administration. The boundary attemptsto 10 And that public interest review weighs the
11 describe the areain which water is tributary to the 11 need for the additional development of the water and its
12 Snake River downstream from Milner Dam as opposed to 12 economic valueto the state of 1daho in opposition to
13 upstream from Milner Dam. 13 thevaue of that water for generating hydropower.
14 A water tributary to the Snake River upstream 14 Q. And what are the dates of some of those term
15 from the Milner Dam is often referred to as nontrust 15 limit approvals?
16  water and that areais the nontrust area 16 A. Sothelist that | prepared shows approvals
17 But for proper administration there needed to 17 occurring as early asthe early 1980s. | have one, for
18  be some demarkation between the area where water was 18 example, here from 1981, all the way up to current time.
19  going to be considered tributary -- and I'm talking 19  Although those that are from more recent time tend to be
20  ground water here -- tributary to the Snake River below 20  nonconsumptive uses and DCMI uses and that kind of
21 Milner as opposed to upstream. 21 thing.
22 Q. Can you explain the background regarding the 22 The older ones | suspect were permits that
23 water rights that you have listed in the staff 23 wereissued and then reprocessed in the late 1980s and
24  memorandum and the term condition placed on those water |24  early 1990s. Therules called for permitsin the trust
25  rights? 25  water areathat had already been issued but had a
Page 19 Page 21
1 A. Certainly. Asthe Department began processing | 1 limited development to actually be reprocessed so that
2 applications for new water rights within the trust water 2 thepublicinterest evaluation could be applied to them.
3  areatoward the end of the 1980s, it was the policy of 3 Q. Do you know if Mr. Kugler's permit 35-8359 was
4  the Department, which continuesto this day, to limit 4 oneof those that the Department reviewed for
5  thepermitsand licenses issued based on those permits 5  reprocessing?
6 toaterm of years, typically 20 years, to alow the 6 A. Yes, that permit did show up on my list. The
7  opportunity for the water user to amortize the cost of 7  approved date on thelist is July 27th, 1990, according
8  development. 8 towhat | came up with. And | don't know right off the
9 Q. Let mejust interrupt for aminute. 1'm sorry 9  top of my head whether it was reprocessed or whether it
10  for theinterruption. 10  wasstill in the application state when trust water
1 Isthislimitation of time, isit purely based 11 processing began.
12 on policy or are there other grounds for the Department | 12 Q. Let'sgo back to the term of yearsfor the
13 to have placed aterm limit of years, do you know? 13 list of water rights that you have. Many of those were
14 A. | actualy took some time yesterday to try to 14  issued for -- and what was the term of years, its
15  determinethat question. And, you know, maybe my 15  limitation?
16  research was not complete, but | didn't find the 16 A. Almost all of them have aterm of 20 years.
17 opportunity for aterm limit in statute or in rules. | 17 Q. And based on the dates that you gave, are some
18  traced it back to the implementation policy from 1988 |18  of those term of years expiring now, or terms of years?
19  for the Swan Falls agreement and found several 19 A. Yes, that iscorrect. Many of the approvals
20  references and an explanation of that policy in that 20  occurred around 1990 or shortly thereafter, so just
21 document. 21 about now we would be seeing some of these permits and
22 Q. Okay. Go ahead. I'm sorry to interrupt. 22 licenses begin to reach the date after which the
23 A. No problem. 23 director can review them for -- to make sure they remain
24 So the purpose of the term limit isto provide 24 inthe public interest.
25 thedirector of the Department of Water Resources an 25 Q. Sowhat are we doing, now that those terms of
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1  yearsareexpiring? 1 water in the area of American Falls Reservoir, and north
2 A. The Department has drafted a letter, which has 2 of that linewould put it firmly in the trust water
3 not gone out yet, but the letter is addressed to holders 3 area
4  of these permits and licenses, and some of them may even | 4 Q. But close to the boundary of the trust water?
5  have been decreed in the Snake River Basin Adjudication | 5 A. Yes. Threeto four milesisrelatively close
6  now, which contain the term review condition. 6  totheboundary, yes.
7 And it's notifying those water right holders 7 Q. And becauseit's close to the boundary, you
8 that their terms, their 20-year terms are expiring and 8 tedtified at one time about a nontrust water area that
9 that the Department may begin evaluating those to 9  would be upstream, or water tributary above Milner. Can
10  determine and if they are still in the public interest. 10  youtalk about the nontrust water area and what it is?
11 The letter as drafted currently, and | have to 11 A. Yes. Under the State water plan, the minimum
12 say that it hasn't gone out yet, indicates that the 12 stream flow on the Snake River at Milner Dam, which is
13 Department probably won't begin that review process 13 insouth central ldaho, is zero, meaning that thereis
14 until about 2014, because the Department is addressing 14 no obligation to deliver water upstream from Milner Dam
15 some other prioritiesfirst. 15  tousesdownstream from Milner Dam.
16 Q. And what isthe reason for the concern or the 16 And the area where groundwater and surface
17  letter at this point? 17  water aretributary to the Snake River upstream from
18 A. As| understand it, | haven't been too heavily 18  Milner Dam and, therefore, potentially subject to
19  involved in these discussions, but to some extent it has 19  curtailment and administration to regulate water rights
20  todo with the fact that the Snake River Basin 20 by priority, that areaistypically referred to asthe
21 adjudication is addressing the hydropower rightsheldby |21 nontrust water area.
22 ldaho Power Company and was an important part of the 22 Q. And will you talk about the Department's
23 adjudication process to define some outstanding issues 23 processing of water rightsin the nontrust and trust
24  related to trust water and trust water processing. And 24 water areaand any possible restrictions on
25  aspart of that, the State of 1daho needed to commit to 25  appropriations that have been imposed or in place by the
Page 23 Page 25
1  Idaho Power that it would conduct this review of these 1  Department over the last 20 or 30 years?
2 trust water rights. 2 A. Yes. In 1992 Director Higginson of the
3 Q. Hasthere been any concern expressed about the 3 Department of Water Resources established a moratorium
4 continued use of thistrust water and itsimpacts on the 4 onnew appropriationsin the Snake River Basin,
5  minimum flows at Murphy? 5 including surface and groundwater upstream from Weiser,
6 A. Yes. There has been some discussion over the 6  whichison the Snake River across from Oregon, so on
7  years. There have been alimited number of times that 7  thewestern side of the state.
8  the opportunity to maintain the minimum stream flowshas | 8 And that moratorium was in response to a
9  comeinto question, the ability to maintain those 9  period of drought in the state of Idaho in which stream
10  minimum stream flows. 10  flowswere down, so reliance on groundwater
11 And because of that -- again, the State of 11  appropriations became greater and the maintenance of
12 ldaho could be facing the need to curtail water rights 12 minimum stream flows, particularly the one at Weiser,
13 tomake surethat those minimum stream flows are 13 was becoming difficult to accomplish.
14  maintained. Andif the Department were to curtail water 14 And so the first step there in making sure
15 rights, presumably these that I've identified on the 15  that the minimum stream flow was maintained was to make
16 list, thesetrust water rights, by definition would be 16  surewe weren't exacerbating the problem by issuing new
17 onesthat would be candidates for curtailment because 17 water right approvals.
18  they usethe water that is tributary to the Snake River 18 As conditions changed, "conditions" meaning
19  and that minimum stream flow reach. 19  precipitation and snow pack over the years, that
20 Q. Mr. Keen, do you know whether or not the point 20  moratorium was modified, first to carve out the nontrust
21 of diversion proposed by permit number 35-8359 iswithin |21 water areaand establish a separate moratorium there,
22 or without the trust water area? 22 and then to back the end point of the remaining piece of
23 A. Yes, | looked at that yesterday. Anditis 23 themoratorium up to King Hill, which is upstream from
24 within the trust water area about three to four miles 24 Swan Fals.
25  north of the line dividing trust water from nontrust 25 And so the way things sit now, isthat since
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1 1992 there has been the moratorium, in its modified form | 1 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | don't have any
2 now, that extends across the trust water area and 2 other questionsfor Mr. Keen.
3 includestributary basins, such asthe entire Wood River 3 Mr. Kugler, do you wish to cross-examine Mr.
4  Basin, theentire Little Lost and Big Lost River Basins. 4  Keenregarding new information?
5 And in the nontrust water area, the moratorium 5
6  order there had some language that was supported by 6 EXAMINATION
7  legidation that caused it to be in place until 1997. 7  QUESTIONSBY MR. KUGLER:
8  That language was alittle bit ambiguous, but the 8 Q. Wéll, I was wondering when these rules that he
9  Department has since interpreted that to mean that the 9  talked about to begin with were adopted, that you were
10  moratorium in the nontrust water area upstream from 10  talking about, asfar astrust waters were concerned.
11 Milner has expired and there is no moratorium in place 11 Do you know the specific date?
12 there. However, there have been delivery calls madein 12 A. Thewater appropriation rules were first
13 that area by surface water users against groundwater and |13 adopted in 1986 or thereabouts, if | remember correctly,
14  other appropriators. 14 and| think maybe modified slightly the year after. |
15 And the conclusion of the Department is that 15  remember reading something about two yearsin the
16 for themost part thereisn't water available for 16  mid-1980s when the rules were adopted and then adjusted
17 appropriation without jeopardizing the ability of the 17  inthenext legidative session. So | think it was '86
18  senior surface water usersto receive their full 18  and'87, but | could be off by ayear or two there.
19  supplies. And so even though thereis no moratoriumin |19 Q. Doesthislist that you havein this
20  thenontrust water area, awater user in the nontrust 20  particular document include issuance of permits from
21 water areawould have to show the Department that there |21 nontrust waters aswell, or isit al trust water only?
22 actually is some water that could be appropriated 22 A. Thislistisonly what the Department
23 without causing injury to the senior water users or that 23 considersto betrust water. There are no -- the points
24 user would have to mitigate for the potential injury to 24 of diversion are within the trust water area.
25  senior surface water users. 25 Q. But you indicated that aline is within the
Page 27 Page 29
1 Q. And, Mr. Keen, do you know if permit number 1 trustarea? Do you know what the boundary linesarein
2  35-8359 was affected by the execution and issuance of 2 that particular area specificaly?
3 moratoriumsin 1992 by Director Higginson? 3 A. Yes. Yoursiswithinthetrust water area,
4 A. Yes. The permit had been issued by the time 4  butitiscloseto the boundary line. It's about --
5  themoratorium went into place. But in 1994 Director 5 Q. You talked about the north boundary. What
6  Higginsonissued an order, | believeit was called a 6  about the west boundary?
7  temporary stay in development, in which he required 7 A. Well, at that |ocation the boundary between
8  permit holderswho -- in the trust water areawho have 8  trust and nontrust runs on aline trending mainly
9  not yet submitted proof of beneficial use to either 9  east-west but alittle bit north-south. So if you
10  submit proof of beneficial use indicating that they had 10  pictureit coming past American Falls Reservoir on the
11 completed their development, or to show that they have 11 north side, it runs northeast to southwest. And your
12 made asubstantial investment in development of their 12 point of diversion for your permit is on the north, or |
13 permit. 13 guessyou could say northwest side of that line within
14 | don't remember what that threshold was for 14  thetrust water areg, and it's about three to four miles
15  substantial, seemslike it was $15,000 or $25,000, 15 fromthat line.
16  something likethat. | don't remember that precise 16 Q. Both north and west? | mean, the line crosses
17 number. Or thethird option was to request an ongoing 17 thisway on arectangle. Thereisasquare corner upin
18  stay in development until circumstances changed. 18 there somewhere.
19 And so Mr. Kugler's permit, if | remember 19 A. If you took the most direct line
20  correctly, ultimately received a stay in development, a 20  southeastward, that would be three to four miles. If
21 long-term stay, and then that was extended through or 21 you went directly south, it would be alittle more than
22 requests for extension of time to submit proof of 22 that. If youwent directly eastward, it would be
23 beneficia use, if | recall correctly. And | don't 23 considerably more than that, if | remember correctly.
24 remember how many of those extensions there might have |24 Q. Now, are there permits that were issued
25  been. 25  between 1984 and 1990 that are not on that particular
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1  listthat cover this general area? 1  permit to this date, have they?
2 A. Yes. Yes, there were permits that were issued 2 A. You know, | haven't been involved in those
3 inthat time frame that would not have been reprocessed 3 discussions, but that is my understanding, yes.
4 under the trust water processing established in the 4 MR. KUGLER: Thank you. Nothing further.
5  rules, because the development would have been completed | 5 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Thank you, Mr.
6 by thetime the trust water processing began or there 6 Keen.
7  would have been a substantial investment made and the 7 I will next call Liz Cresto to come forward.
8  right -- the permit holders would have been asked to 8 Raise your right-hand, please.
9  provide evidence of that, if they had not already 9 LIZ CRESTO,
10  submitted proof of beneficial use. 10  first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said
11 Q. Between 1984 and 1990 could you provide alist 11  cause, testified asfollows:
12 of those documents, of those permits? Could it be 12 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Thank you. Please
13 extracted from Department records? 13  beseated.
14 A. | think it certainly could. I'm not sure how 14
15 much effort it would take. | would have to think 15 EXAMINATION
16  through how we would identify those, but | would think 16 QUESTIONSBY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:
17  itwould certainly be possible. 17 Q. | probably ought to give you the opportunity,
18 Q. Waéll, I'm thinking of between -- up until that 18 | didn't give Mr. Keen. State your name for the record,
19  July date of 1990 when my permit was actually physically 19  if youwould.
20  issued, the application being filed much earlier, of 20 A. Liz Cresto.
21  course, than that, when | was trying to develop the land 21 Q. And what is your employment?
22 inthe'80s, '84 and '85. You don't have any ideawhat 22 A. 1 work here at IDWR. I'm atechnical
23 number that might be? 23 hydrologist.
24 A. | don't right off the top of my head. If | 24 Q. Working as atechnical hydrologist, what do
25  hadto ballpark it, | would say probably hundreds, but | 25  youdo?
Page 31 Page 33
1 don't know how many hundreds. And that isjust aguess | 1 A. I'm mainly involved with surface water, so one
2 based on my experience issuing water right licenses for 2 of my jobsisto monitor the flows of the Snake River
3 thoseinthe 1990s. 3 near Murphy.
4 Q. Okay. But I'm talking about on or before July 4 Q. And Ms. Cresto, I'll hand you a document that
5 of 1990. 5  wereferred to earlier during Mr. Keen's testimony, and
6 A. Yes. If you are asking about permits issued 6 it'stitled "IDWR Staff Memorandum." Are you acquainted
7  before July of 1990 and after some date in the early 7 with this document?
8  '80sand those permits were not reprocessed and did not 8 A. Yes.
9  gettheterm limit, like | said, | would guessit would 9 Q. And did you assist in its preparation?
10  beinthe hundreds, but | don't know how many hundreds. |10 A. Yes.
11 Q. You don't know how many of these permits 11 Q. And can you explain what part of this report
12 combined would have a priority date on and after 1984? |12  that you prepared?
13 A. Yeah, | don't. I'm sure we could figure that 13 A. | prepared -- within the document are several
14 out, but | don't know the number for sure. 14  memos, and | prepared a memo on the flows at Snake River
15 Q. And, of course, if | were ready to develop, my 15 near Murphy, 1980 to 2010.
16  priority date would go back and revert to the 1984 16 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Is her voice being
17 filing, doesit not? 17 picked up, Mr. Weaver?
18 A. Yes, typicaly, unless proof of beneficial use 18 MR. MATT WEAVER: Itis.
19  issubmitted late, the priority date stays the same as 19 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. Thanks.
20  theapplication date. 20 If you could speak up, Ms. Cresto, I'd
21 Q. And when you are talking about proof being 21  appreciateit.
22 submitted late, we both know that I'm looking for awell 22 THE WITNESS: Okay.
23 now, and | can't submit a proof without it, can 1? 23 Q. (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN) And can you
24 A. That's correct. 24 explain your -- the work that you've conducted over the
25 Q. And the Department will not give me awell 25  past few years related to monitoring the flows at Murphy
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1 Gage? 1 dipdownin theearly summer, and that is our main
2 A. Sofor, | think since 2005, I've been 2 period of concern.
3 monitoring the flows of the Snake River near Murphy. 3 Q. Areyou aware of any times when the Department
4  Andwhat | doisl look at the minimum flows, whichis 4 hasbeen concerned about flows below the minimum or very
5 3900 cfsfrom April through October, and then 5600 cfs | 5  near the minimum?
6  from November through March. And | monitor those 6 A. I think --inthismemo | only said on
7  flows-- the physical flows on the Snake River near 7 December 14th, 1987 that the flows actually dropped
8  Murphy to make sure we are not hitting the minimum. 8  below the minimum. Butin 2005 andin -- | know in
9 In addition to the minimum, weterm it a 9 2005, 2007 we came very close to that reference line, so
10 reference flow, because we also look at making surethat |10 the minimum plus the flow augmentation. And thenin
11 during the flow augmentation season that flow 11 2007, | believe, we actually sent out |etters warning
12 augmentation water that is released from Milner or isa 12 peoplethat we are really close to that reference line
13 part of the Bell Rapids out by the Bureau, that that 13  or that thereisthe potential to shut off, | believe,
14  water physically makesit past the Murphy Gage. 14 groundwater users.
15 Q. So that augmentation water is considered as 15 Q. And so this may be a difficult question, but
16  what on top of the minimum flow? 16  you can answer it or not, depending on how comfortable
17 A. Wecall it areference flow, but we consider 17  youare. But if the flows at Murphy Gage or the
18 that we need to protect that water, kind of asif it 18  reference flow dropped below the minimums, then what
19  wereaminimum flow, because with the obligation to 19  would you anticipate the Department might do?
20  shepherd the Bureau's water down and out of the state. 20 MR. KUGLER: Object to the question; form and
21 I'mnot sureif thereis aformal agreement for that. 21 speculation.
22 Q. Soif you were characterizing the reference 22 Q. (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN) Okay. Do you
23 flow, itisaflow ratethat includesthe minimum stream |23 have any acquaintance with what the Department has done
24 flows, as| understand. 24 inthe past?
25 A. Correct. 25 A. | just have the acquaintance with the
Page 35 Page 37
1 Q. At Murphy. Plus, some additional flow on top 1  reference-- or thewarning letter that was sent out.
2 of itthatisbeing released either as storage or other 2 Q. And what did it warn?
3 water that is supposed to move through the system that 3 MR. KUGLER: Objection about the best
4 can't be counted as part of the minimum; right? 4 evidence.
5 A. Correct. 5 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Wéll, I'll overrule
6 Q. And so even though the flows at Murphy are 6  that because she's acquainted with the letter, she can
7 higher than the minimums, that additional flow can't 7 awaystalk about what --
8  count toward the minimum, is my understanding. 8 THE WITNESS: It wasjust awarning to
9 A. Thereisalittle bit of -- | guessif we were 9  potentialy shut people off if the flows continued to be
10  tofall below the reference line, we might not be 10  below the reference line.
11 violating the Swan Falls agreement, the 3900, but we 11 Q. (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN) And thiswould
12 would be, | guess, violating our obligation to the 12 beusersfrom what sources of water?
13 Bureau. 13 A. The groundwater users and junior priority to
14 Q. Thiswater that you are talking about, it'sin 14 the minimum flow.
15 addition to the minimum flow, it's intended to flow 15 Q. And this would be within the trust water area?
16  downstream past the Murphy Gage for what purpose? 16 A. | believe so, yes.
17 A. For both the minimum and the flow augmentation |17 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Mr. Kugler, | don't
18 purposes. 18  have any more questions. Do you have questions for Ms.
19 Q. Okay. And canyou tell mewhy it isthat 19  Cresto?
20  you've been monitoring these flows? 20 MR. KUGLER: | just want to thank her alot
21 A. Because we've had numerous drought yearsand |21 for enjoying the weather thisyear. It's wonderful when
22 we've come pretty closeto that reference line or the 22 youseethat. But| do have one simple question for you
23 minimum flow line. So | mainly closely monitor them 23 with respect to that.
24 thistime of year in the drought years, not this year, 24
25  but other yearsthistime of year typically the flows 25
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1 1 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | think that is
2 EXAMINATION 2 great. But what we haveiswe have atrust water area
3  QUESTIONSBY MR. KUGLER: 3 thatisvery fixed in both rule and law and in --
4 Q. You are talking about the shut-off warnings, 4 MR. KUGLER: I'm aware of that.
5  which of courseisin the overall water case decision 5 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: We have alot of
6  typeof thing asfar as priority is concerned. But are 6  law that doesn't necessarily support that very strict
7  you familiar with my filing permit in this proceeding? 7  stringent definition.
8 A. Yeah. 8 MR. KUGLER: Yes.
9 Q. Sol would have considerable priority over 9 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Andsoit'sa
10  quite anumber of those permit holders, would | not, if 10  dichotomy somewhat to me as the director and as hearing
11 | gettodrill awell? 11  officer about what to do with it. And likel say, it
12 A. I'mnot really sure how that playsin -- | was 12 may cut -- in fact, | think it does, his testimony
13  notinvolved in developing the list of the warning 13 probably will cut more into your favor than against it.
14  letters and how they go through the priorities. | just 14 MR. KUGLER: | could seethat possibility.
15  know they send out a general list. 15 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: But | want to have
16 Q. So your commentsin general strictly relate to 16  itthere, becauseif | don't then we don't have a
17  that onelittle portion of this, referring to that 17 complete record.
18  aspect of it. 18 MR. KUGLER: | appreciate that aspect of it
19 A. Yes. 19  too.
20 MR. KUGLER: Thank you. That'sall. 20 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay.
21 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: John, | would be 21 MR. KUGLER: I'm just looking at the other
22 happy to recall Shelley Keen. 22 whed.
23 MR. KUGLER: No, that's okay. 23 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Yeah. Okay. So
24 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Hewould probably |24 let's just go through it here.
25  know some of that. 25
Page 39 Page 41
1 MR. KUGLER: That'sall right. 1 /i
2 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Thank you, Ms. 2 EXAMINATION
3 Cresto. 3 QUESTIONS BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:
4 Now, John, the last witnessis Allen Wylie, 4 Q. Mr. Wylie, will you state your full name
5 andI'll just have Allen come up and swear himin. And 5 pleasefor the record.
6 | wanttotell you, to just give you apreview of why 6 A. Allan Wylie.
7  Allenistestifying. 7 Q. And will you explain what you do in your work
8 ALLEN WYLIE, 8  herefor the Department.
9 first duly swornto tell the truth relating to said 9 A. | do groundwater modeling. I've donea
10  cause, testified asfollows: 10  groundwater model for the Eastern Snake Plain Aquifer,
11 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Thank you. Please |11  and for the Spokane RAFN model.
12 be seated. 12 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Do you want me to
13 The reason that | asked Allen to participate 13 gothrough and establish him as an expert witness?
14 and prepare a portion for this memo was because as a 14 MR. KUGLER: Not at all. | would loveto talk
15  result of where your point of diversion islocated, it 15  tohim about Spokane RAFN.
16  hasimpacts, the diversion of that groundwater, both to 16 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Well, | can tell
17  thetrust water and the nontrust water areas, based on 17  youthat he's appeared at various hearings, contest case
18  modeling that the Department has done. 18  hearingsfor the Department.
19 And so | want Allan to testify about it and 19 MR. KUGLER: | know the name.
20  putitintherecord because thereisaquestion, and | 20 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: So I'll dispense
21 think thismay cut in your favor more than against you. 21 withit.
22 I'm serious. 22 Q. (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN) But, Mr. Wylie,
23 MR. KUGLER: | understand. | appreciate that. 23 areyou acquainted with the report that isin front of
24 And after the hearing aspect | would like to visit a 24 youtitled "IDWR Staff Memorandum®?
25 little bit with a couple of the individuals if possible. 25 A. lam.
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1 Q. And you prepared a portion of the memorandum? 1 would be below Milner, and that, as | understand from
2 A. | did. 2 Mr. Keen, would be in the trusts.
3 Q. And can you explain what you prepared for the 3 Q. And you referred to various reaches. | don't
4 memorandum? 4  wantto delve too far into this subject because I'm not
5 A. | was asked to do amodeling analysis of Mr. 5 surehow relevantitis. But the model apparently
6  Kugler's permit, and | went through and found thenumber | 6  simulates through the pumping depletionsto various
7  of acresthat he was requesting to irrigate. 7  identified reaches of the Snake River.
8 | selected -- from the permits | found the 8 A. Thereisatotal of 11 reaches. Do you want
9  location he was intending to put hiswell. Then | took 9  meto go through al of them or --
10  the average crop consumptive use and | subtracted off 10 Q. No, just to sort of generally explain, there
11  average precipitation and applied that result to his 11 are some reaches above, some below.
12 acres, and then put that stress on the aquifer at his 12 A. There arefive reaches above Milner and six
13 well and ran amodeling analysis and using the model 13 reachesbelow Milner. So that isjust areas where the
14  determined where hisimpacts would berealized alongthe |14  model istotaling up the impact from whatever stressis
15 SnakeRiver. 15 being applied to the model.
16 Q. Can you back up alittle bit and explain what 16 Q. And the impacts or the simulated impacts that
17 themodel isand what it's intended to try to simulate? 17 you are explaining would occur within what time frame if
18 A. Themodel, we divided up the aquifer into one 18  Mr. Kugler's pumping?
19  mile by one mile grids and each grid has different 19 A. Thiswould be steady state, so that isalong
20  stressesand different physical properties. And these 20  timeafter full build out. | did do transient graphs,
21 different stresses and different physical properties 21 which simulate how long it would take to realize that,
22 adlow the model to steer the impactsin what we hope is 22 and | went out 100 years.
23 something approaching the way the real world situation 23 And in most cases, particularly below Milner,
24 s 24 it takes quite afew years before -- some of them you
25 And theintent of that isthat thisresultsin 25  never even get a 10th of acfsimpact. | think if |
Page 43 Page 45
1 abetter tool for administering water than just having a 1 look back here to the full build out, it doesn't get to
2 bunch of experts at a hearing argue about where the 2 half of a-- it doesn't get to a 1/10th of acfs. It's
3 impacts might be realized. 3 lessthanfiveyearsbeforeit getsto -- before it gets
4 And the model was constructed by many experts, 4 uptoalOOth of acfs.
5 representatives from Idaho Power, the Bureau, other 5 Q. Isthere more information that you would like
6  people sent experts, some people participate on their 6  toadd or discussregarding the simulations and the
7 own. Andtheintent of that isto give everybody common | 7  model itself?
8  ground for thistool to use to see how the impacts are 8 A. No, | can't think of anything.
9  distributed along the Snake River. 9 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. Thank you.
10 Q. Somebody inputting the information that you 10 Mr. Kugler, again, the reason for the
11 explained earlier into the model, and will you go back 11  presentation wasto lend to the record the expertise
12 and explain what those inputs would then simulate using 12 that the Department --
13 themodel with respect to Mr. Kugler's application -- or 13 MR. KUGLER: | understand that aspect of it
14 hispermit? I'm sorry. 14 from that standpoint. | waslooking at other things. |
15 A. | came up with just under 540 acre feet per 15 have no questions for him. Thank you.
16  year would be consumptively used if Mr. Kugler's permit | 16 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. Thank you,
17 werefully developed. Isthat what you are asking? 17 Mr. Wylie.
18 Q. And then that would be how much water would be |18 That isall the information that we had
19  consumptively used. But then what are the simulated 19  prepared in support of the staff memorandum, John, and
20  impactson the Snake River and reaches above and below |20 you are welcome to present whatever additional evidence
21 Milner? Because | think the report probably shows that 21  youwant to regarding --
22  information. 22 MR. KUGLER: Let mejust briefly state, and
23 A. Do youwant all 11 reachesor just -- I've got 23 I'll leave that for your standpoint, because | don't
24 490.5 above Milner. So based on Mr. Keen's that would 24 think that you have given any thought to or looked at
25  beinthenontrust. And then 49 acre feet per year 25  theimpact. My recollection -- and I'm getting old, |
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1  don't remember alot anymore. But there was a statute 1 evidence that isin the record, part of my reason for
2 beforealot of these rules and regulations camein 2 going through the more formal presentation was to set
3 enacted by thelegislature, and | think it's 42-223, if 3 thestagefor what | think is an important issue and
4 | remember right. And you didn't address that in your 4 some degreeit is atest case for me and --
5  order, and | would like that addressed at thistime if 5 MR. KUGLER: Wéll, there is no question that
6  you believeit has any impact asfar asthe decision is 6  thisisaunique proceeding, but the advantage of it is
7  concerned. 7  you'll never have another one.
8 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: What do you believe 8 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Maybe.
9  the statute says? 9 MR. KUGLER: From what | know about other
10 MR. KUGLER: I think that isthe one that 10  pending (inaudible), | don't anticipate one of this
11  protected my rights asif | had gonein and had awell 11  particular nature. Mineisunique. Because some of the
12 permit issued to meoriginally in 1984, and protects it 12 controversiesthat are out there have been pending for a
13 just asexisted asit was first issued between '84 and 13 longtime, even before. And secondly, those newer ones
14 '85,'89 for that matter, afive-year period. 14  that are developing by those three or four other people
15 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. | don't 15 who attempt to prolong are not in the same position as
16  recal that. 16  mine by along ways because of how late they filed to
17 MR. KUGLER: That hasto do -- because this 17 begin with.
18  statute was enacted prior to the moratorium statute, and 18 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | think you are
19  |think that isalegal issue, may or may not be 19  rightinthat smaller context, but in the larger view we
20  involved eventudly. Asl said, | want to chat briefly 20  have, and thisis part of the reason al of this came
21 with these gentlemen here and talk about something else, 21 in, we have many, many water rights right now --
22 partof it 22 MR. KUGLER: From what | see now, what your
23 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Isthe statute 23  future applications are, you are right. 1 go back to
24 identified in any of your briefing? 24 1962 when | argued for the three Idaho Power licenses
25 MR. KUGLER: | doubt it because -- not to my 25  beforethe National Park Association. And | argued the
Page 47 Page 49
1  recollection. | think | argued it orally at that last 1  State'sposition asfar as granting the licenses at that
2 reconsideration hearing. 2 pointintime, so | know alittle bit about downstream
3 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | would appreciate 3 flow.
4  adirect reference, because what you are talking 4 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Who were you
5  about -- 5  representing then?
6 MR. KUGLER: I'll get it to you in writing. 6 MR. KUGLER: The State of Idaho.
7 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. Additional 7 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Were you working
8  arguments or evidence you wish to present, Mr. Kugler? 8  for the Attorney General?
9 MR. KUGLER: No, no, nothing further, no. 9 MR. KUGLER: Asaspecia appointment, yep,
10 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | know, John, that 10  because | worked for the Commission.
11  you are concerned, again, about the second portion of 11 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: That isvery
12 what we talked about and that isthat -- and you 12 interesting.
13  presented evidence at the first hearing regarding what 13 MR. KUGLER: A long time ago, almost 50 years.
14  you felt was asignificant expenditure of money on your 14 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: | know that. But
15  part for development. 15  my concernin thisiswe have many, many water rights
16 MR. KUGLER: Right. 16  that have term limits expiring.
17 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: And | certainly 17 MR. KUGLER: Yes. Well, | see where that
18  want tolook at that aswell, but | know that 18  comesinto adifferent -- alittle bit different play
19 information isin the file and was presented at the 19  than mine, but you might get some guidanceif | go
20  initia hearing. And so certainly if you want to 20  forward, yes.
21 expound or expand on that particular issue -- 21 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Y eah, because many
22 MR. KUGLER: No, no, | blubbered too much at 22 of those people, if we approve your water right or we
23 thattime. 23 approve it with some limited mitigation requirement,
24 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. Well, | hope |24  many of them might comein and hire somebody to apply
25  you recognize at least in the presentation of the 25  themode toit and say: My impact down below isn't all
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1 totrust water. It'snot al depletion to Milner. 1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2 MR. KUGLER: | don't think that is open on any 2
3 of thosethat I'm aware of anyway. 3 I, BEVERLY A. BENJAMIN, CSR No. 710, Certified
4 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: It's not right now, 4 Shorthand Reporter, certify:
5  but we have many of them that we will be going through a 5 That the foregoing audio taped proceedings were
6  review, and we may be requiring of them something to 6  transcribed by me;
7  ensurethat the minimum flows at Murphy are maintained, 7 That the testimony and all objections made were
8 that Liz talked about, because we were down some years 8  transcribed by me or under my direction;
9  bumping against it. 9 That the foregoing is a true and correct record
10 So those are the kinds of issues that we are 10  of al testimony given, to the best of my ability;
11  looking at, and consequently in some respects what you 11 | further certify that | am not arelative or
12 arepresenting isatest case for the Department and 12 employee of any attorney or party, nor am | financially
13 maybefor -- 13  interested in the action.
14 MR. KUGLER: | don't want to make it atest, | 14 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | set my hand and seal this
15  would rather resolve it without that aspect of it. That 15 26th day of August, 2011.
16  iswhy | wanted to have a hearing a couple years ago, as 16
17 my CRPwas expiring in 2009. 17
18 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Well, weknew it |18 ’ o
19  wason therise even then, that is part of the reason i /A 744 '
20 forthedelay. i ;2 \,\{:}Mcuﬁ} v% ,(_2( ;T/ﬂquxL.,L
21 Okay. If wedon't have anything further, 21 BEVERLY A. BENJAMIN, CSR, RPR
22 thank you and we'll close therecord. And you are 22 Notary Public
23 welcometo talk to them. 23 P.O. Box 2636
24 MR. KUGLER: Yeah, | just want to chat a 24 Boise, Idaho 83701-2636
25 little bit about a change of point of diversion, asa 25 My commission expires May 15, 2013
Page 51
1 matter of fact.
2 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: So you can stop the
3 tape
4 (Off the record.)
5 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: I've reopened the
6  record -- are we recording, Matt?
7 MR. MATT WEAVER: Yes.
8 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: I've reopened the
9  record just to clarify the representation here today.
10 Mr. Kugler, will you please state for the
11 record your intention regarding your own representation
12 here as contested.
13 MR. KUGLER: | have from the beginning been
14  appearing pro se, and asfar asthis proceeding is
15  concerned have done so. | have not authorized anyone to
16  makeany filings with the Department for me.
17 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. And Jerry
18 Rigbyis--
19 MR. KUGLER: And Jerry Rigby specifically.
20 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Isnot counsel of
21 record.
22 MR. KUGLER: Isnot counsel of record.
23 HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay. All right.
24 Thank you very much for clarifying. And we'll go off
25  therecord again. (Hearing Concluded.)
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  January 2008, so
it's been a while. Anyway, John requested a
reconsi deration, and after review of (inaudible) grounds
that were set forth, the Department and the director
granted the petition. And |I'm |l ooking at the order
granting the augnentation hearing.

And, John, you received a copy of the staff

menor andunt?

MR KUGER | did see that, and | don't
understand it, frankly. 1In fact, that was not involved
inny record. It was on the appeal for review by
(i naudi bl e).

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | understand, but

in what was in the order granting the augnentation
hearing it says, "Based on this review the director
finds that there was no presentation or opportunity for
presentation of hearing of evidence regarding the effect
of injury or senior priority water rights that m ght be
caused by the devel opnent of the beneficial use proposed
by Cooper."

MR. KUGLER: | understand that. But, however,
part of the record there was evidence prior and a prior
existing order with respect toit. And all I
Asked for was to review the record. That is what |

asked for was a hearing on review by the appeal to the

208-345-9611
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director.

And if you recall in Septenber when | hadn't
recei ved anything, the director was there and you sai d:
I know why you are here. | was with ny son there. And
when | wal ked into your roomyou said: Onh, | know why
you are here. Sonehow this got m splaced and you pull ed
the order, | believe, ny request for the review out and
said: Ch, this is why you are here.

And then subsequently there we were going to
set a hearing and last fall you were going to set a
hearing. |n Septenber said, if | had special date, |et
it go. It wasn't set. And the next thing | know --
because you said you woul d go ahead and set it
i medi ately in Septenber or Cctober, it wasn't done
because | didn't have a special date, as far as just
com ng down whenever you could, and that didn't happen

The next thing | know | get this directive and
a hearing date for this hearing today. And | think,
frankly, was pronpted by soneone who had no busi ness
chatting with you about this proceeding.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Well, | want to
tell you that --

MR KUGLER: Because he sent ne a bill with a
charge for comunicating with you, personally, M. Jerry

Ri gby.

208-345-9611
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Wl |, 1've not
conversed with Jerry Rigby directly about this matter at
all.

MR, KUGLER: Well I'mglad to hear that.
don't know what he did, but it seens to ne like it was a
20 or 30 mnute phone call he billed ne for, and |
didn't even hire him | made inquiries to whether
should or shouldn't, and | never got a response from him
ever.

So |'ve been getting no responses constantly
for three years when |'ve been after it trying to get
the right to go ahead and proceed with nmy water,
drilling a well.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Let me go back and
let's | ook at what was filed, John. This is, at |east
what | have, this is titled "Exception to Menorandum "
Is that the docunent that you are referring to as to
your request?

MR KUGER  Correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Then you |ist a
nunber of exceptions?

MR KUGER  Correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And by the way,
this was deenmed to be a request for reconsideration, a

petition for reconsideration?

208-345-9611
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MR, KUGLER: | filed a request for review
with the director, and that is what you' ve even spoken
of as being when you didn't get it set --

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | ' m sorry.

MR, KUGLER: -- when you didn't get it set
before he retired and quit coming in.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, the petition
for reconsiderati on was denied. Then you filed the
exception.

MR KUGLER: That's correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And this is the
request. "The applicant respectfully asks that the
director grant reconsideration of the hearing officer's
order and provide applicant with the opportunity to
subnit such other evidence as m ght be requested or
consi dered, and upon conclusion of the sane grant to
applicant the right to proceed with the devel opnent of
the farm and subject to the priority rights and all
senior water right holders that may be affected, if
any."

So as | read that request, it says "provide
the applicant with the opportunity to submt such other
evi dence as m ght be requested or considered and upon
concl usion of the same grant." So based on the

exceptions that you filed, John, and --

208-345-9611
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MR KUGLER: | understand that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And so --

MR. KUGLER: M point being is, that after
thinking and reviewing it, |I'mnot planning on
presenting any evidence today. | want to just resubmt
nmy thoughts as to what has been nissed by you when you
were a hearing officer and now sitting as a director.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  But what | intend
to do, honestly, is to have each of these people who
participated in the preparation of this docunment, they
are here today --

MR, KUGLER: Well, | object as far as the
record is concerned to any presentation of evidence
other than after | subnit sonme, and |'mnot subnitting
any, and | think the rule provides that. They let you
do it by way of a rebuttal type of thing, because this
was frommy review of the record, and that is not the
record.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKVMAN:  But we are not
recording yet. Are we?

MR. MATT WEAVER: | was recording.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. That's fine.
It's an informal discussion. That's fine. |'mhappy to
have it on the record.

For the record, John, based on the order that

208-345-9611 M & M COURT REPCRTI NG SERVI CE, | NC. 800- 234- 9611
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was issued, it's nmy opinion that the record was
deficient in this particular area and that you should
have the opportunity to present evidence and that the
Departnment as well shoul d have the opportunity to put on
evi dence regardi ng those particular issues. And | won't
create a further deficiency by not having the evidence
in the record.

So fromny perspective this hearing today is
for the purpose of bringing this docunment into the
record, as well as supporting information regarding this
information, so that all of that is in the record. And
then if you want to appeal the matter, you can appea
it -- and the information, a reviewi ng court would have
the necessary infornmation

O herwise, in ny opinion, I"'mset up for a
remand to go through the same process down the road if,
in fact, you don't agree with decision

MR, KUGLER: Well, | understand where you are
coming fromin that particular position, | do. As I
say, my objection is also a fornality as far as the
record i s concerned, because we had a hearing, and that
is the record which | had taken forward. Yes, | was
granted a chance to present additional evidence, but
that didn't extend to the State, that was fromny

st andpoi nt .

208-345-9611 M & M COURT REPCRTI NG SERVI CE, | NC. 800- 234- 9611
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Had | presented sone, yes, you could have

of fered some. That is the argunent that | will present
on that particular position. | don't even understand
what that is about. | can't read it. | don't know it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Well, and | guess
nmy intention this norning, John, is to put each of these
Wi t nesses on and just very generally ask them some
guestions to explain what is in the docunents so you
under stand what is here.

MR KUGLER: Well, | appreciate that part, but
| don't want to waive ny right of objection accordingly.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. And | agree,
you certainly have the right to object, but I want this
to be a full and conplete record at this point. And
that is why |I've asked staff to prepare the nmenorandum
and that is why I've asked that you be here today. And
you are entitled to ask themafter they present their
testinmony -- it will be nore narrative, than anything --
to ask them questi ons about the information that is
contai ned here in on cross-exam nation

MR KUGLER: All right.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  All right. Wth
that introduction, and naybe we ought to introduce
everybody here again

My nane is Gary Spackman, |'mthe hearing

208-345-9611
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officer and the interimdirector of the Departnent.

This is Matt Weaver to ny right, he will be recording
the testinmony today. And M. Kugler is here, John

Kugl er, we've been conversing. And also here today is
Shel l ey Keen, Allan Wlie, Liz Cresto, and Crai g Saxton.

And the record has already captured the
di scussi on about the proceedings today. | won't need to
repeat them Today is the tinme and place that was set
for this augnmentation hearing.

Do we have any other natters to di scuss before
we go on the record?

MR, KUGLER: | just want one question with
you, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Yes.

MR, KUGLER: That is, this ground was in CRP
when this water right in 1990 was granted, and that |
think is a part of the Departnent record. But there was
a CRP contract along the land; am| correct?

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  That is ny
recol | ection.

MR. KUGLER: That is ny recollection.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Let ne just --

MR, KUGLER  Because | was going to bring the
CRP contract itself physically, but | believe I

testified to that during the prior hearing.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  That is what

recall. And, John, let nme give you an opportunity,
first of all, to make an opening statenent, you m ght
want to do that here. And then | would like -- well, |
will call the witnesses that participated in the

preparation of these docunents, because | don't think
it's appropriate that | take this into the record

wi t hout you having the opportunity to have them here and
exam ne them

MR KUGLER: Well, okay, | understand.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And then foll ow ng
their testinmony then you' Il have an opportunity to
present whatever you want to present. And from ny
perspective, there won't be any kind of rebuttal from
the Departnent. I'mjust trying to bring evidence into
t he record.

So let's start, M. Kugler, do you wish to
make an openi ng statenent ?

MR. KUGLER: Briefly it is, | wuld start off
by comenting with respect to that particul ar docunent.
| think it's irrelevant to the issue anyway, the
petition involved here. So in addition to procedural
objection, | think it's irrelevant on its face.

The question being here is whether or not |

was entitled to drill a well as a result of having a

208-345-9611 M & M COURT REPCRTI NG SERVI CE, | NC. 800- 234- 9611
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permt issued to ne. And it is ny position that it is,
and | think fromthat particular standpoint, the record
did evaluate that | should have been granted a right --
a well right to drill a well and have a well driller
apply for a drilling pernit on this particular ground.

And also that not only is it relevant, even if
it were relevant to this particular proceeding, the
mtigating factors which do, in fact, exist within here
as to how rmuch noney | had expended and how ruch tine
and effort | had spent trying to get that well done
before we even tried to put it into CRP. And | had a --
I think the record shows that | had a nmjor investnent
in equi pment that a well driller asked ne to acquire and
then he stole it and sold it, that type of thing, all of
which are factors there. And | think those overcone any
other difficulties and that | should have the right to
have the well that came as a part of the issuance of the
permt.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Wl |, those
certainly are issues that need to be addressed.

MR, KUGLER: Yeah.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And | don't want to
di scount those issues.

MR. KUGLER: Yeah.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  The ot her issues in

208-345-9611
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ny opinion that relate to this are: Wat is the

rel ati onship of your permt with other pernmits that

ei ther may have been allowed to devel op or may have been
hel d for whatever reason? Wat are the policies of the

Departnment? What is the law? And then what are the

i npact s?
MR, KUGLER: Well, | understand that, yeah
HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  So those are

i nportant issues as well. And | know you feel they are

irrelevant, but to develop a full and conplete record,
want to have all of that information in place.

MR KUGLER: Well, the only rebuttal or
additional statenent | would nmake in that regard is: M
position would be is that the record already had a
finding in that regard of record.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  There certainly was
a finding that there wasn't supporting evidence in the
record, and that's part of the reason why this order
granting the augnentation hearing was issued.

Wth that opening statenent, | wll cal
Shell ey Keen. If you'll step forward, M. Keen. Take a
seat at the m crophone and raise your right hand.

SHELLEY KEEN
first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said

cause, testified as foll ows:

208-345-9611 M & M COURT REPCRTI NG SERVI CE, | NC. 800- 234- 9611
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Thank you, please

be seat ed.

EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:

Q M. Keen, I'll hand you a copy of what is
identified as IDWR Staff Menorandumin the Matter of
Permit No. 35-8359 in the nane of John B. Kugler and
Di ane K. Kugler.

A.  Thank you.

Q Are you aware or acquainted with this
document ?

A | am

Q And it is contained in the files of the
Department of Water Resources and in particular in the
File 35-08359. And you are aware that the director
requested preparation of a staff nmenorandunf

A.  Yes.

Q And can you explain your participation in the
preparation of this nenorandunf

A. Yes. | was asked to prepare a list of water
rights that have been issued in the trust water area and
whi ch contain a condition of approval limting themto a
specific termof years. And | did that and produced

approxi mately a 15-page |ist of about 680 water right

208-345-9611
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approval s contai ning those conditions fromthat trust
wat er area.

Q Can you explain your acquai ntance with trust
water, and if you could identify trust water and what it
is and where it came from | just want you to narrate
this information as best you can. | don't want to
necessarily engage in a very rigid exam nation process.

And, M. Kugler, if you have sone objection
during the testinony, you are welcone to tender it at
any tine.

MR KUGLER: Well, | have a standing objection
against all of it. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  So recogni zed.

Q (BY HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKVAN) M. Keen?

A. Ckay. Thank you.

Trust water as defined in the water
appropriation rules for the Departnent of Water
Resources is that portion of an unsubordi nated water
right for generating hydropower that is in excess of a
st at e-establ i shed m ni mrum stream fl ow.

And in |Idaho when we speak of trust water, we
are usually thinking of the water in the Snake Ri ver or
its tributaries, including groundwater from M | ner Dam
where the mnimumstreamflow is zero, downstreamto

Mur phy Gage where the m nimum streamflows are, if |
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Audi o Transcription - Status Conference 6/ 14/ 2011

Page 16

remenber correctly, 3900 cfs fromApril through Cctober,
and 5600 cfs from Novenber through March

And the reason for that specific area is that
on the downstream end near Murphy there is an |daho
Power Conpany dam and facility at Swan Falls where the
unsubordi nated water right was, if | renenber correctly,
about 8400 cfs.

So conmencing in 1977 there was a |l awsuit and
several things that occurred, but it resulted in the
State of ldaho acquiring, in exchange for establishment
of those minimum stream flows, the portion exceeding
those nini muns of |daho Power Conpany's hydropower right
in trust and the opportunity to reallocate that trust
wat er for upstream devel opnent as |ong as that upstream
devel opnent is in the public interest.

Q You referred to trust water being located in a
particul ar area. Can you define that geographical area?

A. Sure. As | nentioned before, it's the Snake
Ri ver and surface water and groundwater tributary to the
Snake River from Murphy, which is in southwestern |daho,
upstreamto MIner Damin south central Idaho on the
Snake River. And that area generally enconpasses
groundwat er across the Eastern Snake River Plain Aquifer
and to sone extent in tributary basins |ike the Wod

Ri ver and the Lost R ver Basin, and then al so sone area

208-345-9611 M & M COURT REPCRTI NG SERVI CE, | NC. 800- 234- 9611
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on the south side of the Snake River extendi ng across
the Magi c Vall ey.

Q Are there fixed boundaries that identify where
groundwat er or surface water is considered to be trust
wat er ?

A.  Yes. That boundary is in the Water
Appropriation Rules, |DAPA 37-0308, if | renenber
correctly, in an appendix in that area is described with
net es and bounds and a map.

Q Do you have any fanmliarity with the way in
whi ch t he boundary was devel oped?

A I'mnot really famliar with exactly how t hat
was devel oped at the tine. | suspect there was sone
nodeling effort, but really |I can't testify to extensive
know edge of that.

Q And can you characterize the inportance of
trust water area as it relates to the entire Swan Falls
controversy and settlenent that occurred statewide in
the ' 80s?

A.  Yes. The inportance of that was that if the
unsubor di nat ed hydropower right held by |Idaho Power at
Swan Falls had to be honored, then there would have had
to be likely a curtail ment of water rights throughout
the trust water area in order to neet the 8400 cfs water

right at Swan Falls.
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By entering into the agreement the State
avoi ded that delivery call and allowed water use to
continue upstreamfrom Swan Falls and across the Eastern
Snake Pl ain Aquifer and al so enabl ed sone additi onal
devel opnent of consunptive water uses with the use of
that trust water.

Q \What was the inportance of having a boundary
in a defined area for that settlenment?

A. The inportance of having a boundary was for
proper adm nistration. The boundary attenpts to
describe the area in which water is tributary to the
Snake River downstream from M| ner Dam as opposed to
upstream from M | ner Dam

A water tributary to the Snake Ri ver upstream
fromthe MIner Damis often referred to as nontrust
water and that area is the nontrust area.

But for proper adm nistration there needed to
be sone demarkati on between the area where water was
going to be considered tributary -- and |I'mtalking
ground water here -- tributary to the Snake River bel ow
M I ner as opposed to upstream

Q Can you explain the background regardi ng the
water rights that you have listed in the staff
menor andum and the term condition placed on those water

ri ghts?
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A. Certainly. As the Departnent began processing
applications for new water rights within the trust water
area toward the end of the 1980s, it was the policy of
t he Departnent, which continues to this day, to limt
the permits and |licenses issued based on those pernits
to a termof years, typically 20 years, to allow the
opportunity for the water user to anortize the cost of
devel opnent .

Q Let nme just interrupt for a minute. |'msorry
for the interruption.

Is this linmtation of tine, is it purely based
on policy or are there other grounds for the Departnment
to have placed a termlimt of years, do you know?

A. | actually took sonme tine yesterday to try to
deternine that question. And, you know, naybe mny
research was not conplete, but | didn't find the
opportunity for a termlimt in statute or in rules.
traced it back to the inplenentation policy from 1988

for the Swan Falls agreenent and found severa

references and an expl anation of that policy in that
docunent .
Q Okay. Go ahead. I'msorry to interrupt.

A.  No problem
So the purpose of the termlimt is to provide

the director of the Departnent of Water Resources an
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opportunity periodically to eval uate whether those trust
water rights remain in the public interest. Wen they
are initially reviewed, they are reviewed to nmake sure
that they are individually and collectively not going to
provide a significant reduction to flows of the Snake
River. And if they are found to probably cause a
significant reduction, then there is a public interest
review and criteria in code and the rules for the
director to conduct that public interest review

And that public interest review weighs the
need for the additional devel opment of the water and its
econonic value to the state of Idaho in opposition to
the value of that water for generating hydropower.

Q And what are the dates of sone of those term
limt approval s?

A. So the list that | prepared shows approvals
occurring as early as the early 1980s. | have one, for
exanple, here from 1981, all the way up to current tinme.
Al t hough those that are fromnore recent tinme tend to be
nonconsunpti ve uses and DCM uses and that kind of
t hi ng.

The ol der ones | suspect were permits that
were issued and then reprocessed in the late 1980s and
early 1990s. The rules called for permts in the trust

wat er area that had al ready been issued but had a
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limted devel opnent to actually be reprocessed so that
the public interest evaluation could be applied to them

Q Do you know if M. Kugler's permt 35-8359 was
one of those that the Departnent reviewed for
r epr ocessi ng?

A.  Yes, that permt did show up on ny list. The
approved date on the list is July 27th, 1990, according
to what | canme up with. And | don't know right off the
top of ny head whether it was reprocessed or whether it
was still in the application state when trust water
processi ng began.

Q Let's go back to the termof years for the
list of water rights that you have. Many of those were
i ssued for -- and what was the termof years, its
limtation?

A. Alnost all of themhave a termof 20 years.

Q And based on the dates that you gave, are sone
of those termof years expiring now, or ternms of years?

A. Yes, that is correct. Many of the approvals
occurred around 1990 or shortly thereafter, so just
about now we woul d be seeing sone of these permts and
licenses begin to reach the date after which the
director can review themfor -- to nmake sure they remain
in the public interest.

Q So what are we doing, now that those terns of
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years are expiring?

A. The Departnent has drafted a letter, which has
not gone out yet, but the letter is addressed to hol ders
of these permts and |licenses, and some of them may even
have been decreed in the Snake River Basin Adjudication
now, which contain the termreview condition.

And it's notifying those water right holders
that their terns, their 20-year terns are expiring and
that the Departnent may begin eval uating those to
deternine and if they are still in the public interest.

The letter as drafted currently, and | have to
say that it hasn't gone out yet, indicates that the
Departnment probably won't begin that review process
until about 2014, because the Departnent is addressing
some other priorities first.

Q And what is the reason for the concern or the
letter at this point?

A.  As | understand it, | haven't been too heavily
i nvol ved in these discussions, but to sone extent it has
to do with the fact that the Snake River Basin
adj udi cation is addressing the hydropower rights held by
| daho Power Conpany and was an inportant part of the
adj udi cation process to define sone outstanding i ssues
related to trust water and trust water processing. And

as part of that, the State of |Idaho needed to comit to
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| daho Power that it would conduct this review of these
trust water rights.

Q Has there been any concern expressed about the
continued use of this trust water and its inpacts on the
m ni mum fl ows at Mur phy?

A.  Yes. There has been sone discussion over the
years. There have been a limted nunber of tines that
the opportunity to naintain the m ninumstreamfl ows has
come into question, the ability to naintain those
m ni mum stream f | ows.

And because of that -- again, the State of
| daho could be facing the need to curtail water rights
to make sure that those mninumstreamflows are
mai ntai ned. And if the Departnent were to curtail water
rights, presumably these that |'ve identified on the
list, these trust water rights, by definition would be
ones that would be candidates for curtail nent because
they use the water that is tributary to the Snake Ri ver
and that m ni mum stream fl ow reach

Q M. Keen, do you know whether or not the point
of diversion proposed by permt nunber 35-8359 is within
or without the trust water area?

A.  Yes, | looked at that yesterday. And it is
within the trust water area about three to four mles

north of the line dividing trust water from nontrust
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water in the area of Anerican Falls Reservoir, and north
of that line would put it firmy in the trust water
ar ea.

Q But close to the boundary of the trust water?

A. Yes. Three to four miles is relatively close
to the boundary, vyes.

Q And because it's close to the boundary, you
testified at one time about a nontrust water area that
woul d be upstream or water tributary above MIner. Can
you tal k about the nontrust water area and what it is?

A.  Yes. Under the State water plan, the m ni num
stream fl ow on the Snake R ver at MIner Dam which is
in south central Idaho, is zero, nmeaning that there is
no obligation to deliver water upstreamfrom M | ner Dam
to uses downstream from M | ner Dam

And the area where groundwater and surface
water are tributary to the Snake River upstream from
M I ner Dam and, therefore, potentially subject to
curtail ment and admnistration to regulate water rights
by priority, that area is typically referred to as the
nontrust water area.

Q And will you talk about the Departnent's
processing of water rights in the nontrust and trust
wat er area and any possible restrictions on

appropriations that have been inposed or in place by the
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Department over the last 20 or 30 years?

A, Yes. In 1992 Director Higginson of the
Department of WAter Resources established a noratorium
on new appropriations in the Snake Ri ver Basin,

i ncl udi ng surface and groundwat er upstream from Wi ser,
which is on the Snake River across from Oregon, so on
the western side of the state.

And that noratoriumwas in response to a
period of drought in the state of Idaho in which stream
flows were down, so reliance on groundwat er
appropriations becanme greater and the mai ntenance of
m ni mum stream fl ows, particularly the one at Wi ser,
was beconing difficult to acconpli sh.

And so the first step there in naking sure
that the m ninum stream fl ow was mai ntai ned was to make
sure we weren't exacerbating the problem by issuing new
wat er right approvals.

As conditions changed, "conditions" neaning
preci pitation and snow pack over the years, that
noratoriumwas nodified, first to carve out the nontrust
wat er area and establish a separate noratoriumthere,
and then to back the end point of the renaining piece of
the noratoriumup to King Hill, which is upstreamfrom
Swan Falls.

And so the way things sit now, is that since
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1992 there has been the noratorium in its nodified form
now, that extends across the trust water area and
includes tributary basins, such as the entire Wod R ver
Basin, the entire Little Lost and Big Lost Ri ver Basins.

And in the nontrust water area, the noratorium
order there had sone | anguage that was supported by
| egislation that caused it to be in place until 1997.
That | anguage was a little bit anmbi guous, but the
Departnment has since interpreted that to nean that the
noratoriumin the nontrust water area upstream from
M I ner has expired and there is no noratoriumin place
there. However, there have been delivery calls nade in
that area by surface water users agai nst groundwater and
ot her appropri ators.

And the conclusion of the Departnment is that
for the nost part there isn't water available for
appropriation without jeopardizing the ability of the
seni or surface water users to receive their ful
supplies. And so even though there is no noratoriumin
the nontrust water area, a water user in the nontrust
wat er area woul d have to show the Departnent that there
actually is sone water that could be appropriated
W thout causing injury to the senior water users or that
user would have to mtigate for the potential injury to

seni or surface water users.
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Q And, M. Keen, do you know if permt nunber
35-8359 was affected by the execution and issuance of
noratoriums in 1992 by Director Hi ggi nson?

A. Yes. The pernmit had been issued by the tine
the noratoriumwent into place. But in 1994 Director
H ggi nson issued an order, | believe it was called a
tenporary stay in devel opnent, in which he required
permit holders who -- in the trust water area who have
not yet subnitted proof of beneficial use to either
subnit proof of beneficial use indicating that they had
conpl eted their devel oprment, or to show that they have
made a substantial investnment in devel opnment of their
permt.

| don't renmenber what that threshold was for
substantial, seens like it was $15,000 or $25, 000,
something like that. | don't renmenber that precise
nunber. O the third option was to request an ongoi ng
stay in devel opnment until circunstances changed.

And so M. Kugler's permt, if | renenber
correctly, ultimately received a stay in devel opnent, a
| ong-term stay, and then that was extended through or
requests for extension of time to submt proof of
beneficial use, if | recall correctly. And | don't
remenber how many of those extensions there m ght have

been.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | don't have any
ot her questions for M. Keen
M. Kugler, do you wish to cross-examne M.

Keen regardi ng new i nformati on?

EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR KUGLER

Q Well, | was wondering when these rules that he
tal ked about to begin with were adopted, that you were
tal ki ng about, as far as trust waters were concer ned.

Do you know the specific date?

A.  The water appropriation rules were first
adopted in 1986 or thereabouts, if |I renenber correctly,
and | think maybe nodified slightly the year after. |
renmenber readi ng sonet hi ng about two years in the
m d- 1980s when the rules were adopted and then adj usted
in the next |legislative session. So | think it was '86
and '87, but | could be off by a year or two there.

Q Does this list that you have in this
particul ar docunent include issuance of permts from
nontrust waters as well, or is it all trust water only?

A. This list is only what the Departnment
considers to be trust water. There are no -- the points
of diversion are within the trust water area.

Q But you indicated that a line is within the
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trust area? Do you know what the boundary lines are in
that particular area specifically?

A. Yes. Yours is within the trust water area,
but it is close to the boundary line. It's about --

Q You tal ked about the north boundary. What
about the west boundary?

A. Well, at that |ocation the boundary between
trust and nontrust runs on a line trending mainly
east-west but a little bit north-south. So if you
picture it coning past Anerican Falls Reservoir on the
north side, it runs northeast to southwest. And your
poi nt of diversion for your permit is on the north, or |
guess you could say northwest side of that [ine within
the trust water area, and it's about three to four mles
fromthat Iine.

Q Both north and west? | nean, the line crosses
this way on a rectangle. There is a square corner up in
t here sonewhere.

A. If you took the nost direct line
sout heastward, that would be three to four mles. |If
you went directly south, it would be a little nore than
that. |If you went directly eastward, it would be
considerably nore than that, if | renenber correctly.

Q Now, are there pernmits that were issued

bet ween 1984 and 1990 that are not on that particul ar
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list that cover this general area?

A. Yes. Yes, there were permits that were issued
in that tinme frame that would not have been reprocessed
under the trust water processing established in the
rul es, because the devel opnent woul d have been conpl et ed
by the tine the trust water processing began or there
woul d have been a substantial investnent nmade and the
right -- the pernmit holders would have been asked to
provi de evidence of that, if they had not already
subnitted proof of beneficial use.

Q Between 1984 and 1990 could you provide a li st
of those docunents, of those pernmits? Could it be
extracted from Departnment records?

A. | think it certainly could. 1|'mnot sure how
much effort it would take. | would have to think
t hrough how we woul d identify those, but | would think
it would certainly be possible.

Q Well, I"'mthinking of between -- up until that
July date of 1990 when ny permt was actually physically
i ssued, the application being filed much earlier, of
course, than that, when | was trying to develop the | and
in the '80s, '84 and '85. You don't have any idea what
nunber that m ght be?

A. | don't right off the top of ny head. |If I

had to ballpark it, | would say probably hundreds, but I
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don't know how many hundreds. And that is just a guess
based on ny experience issuing water right |icenses for
those in the 1990s.

Q Ckay. But I'mtalking about on or before July
of 1990.

A. Yes. |If you are asking about pernmits issued
before July of 1990 and after sone date in the early
'80s and those pernits were not reprocessed and did not
get the termlimt, like | said, | would guess it would
be in the hundreds, but | don't know how many hundreds.

Q You don't know how many of these permts
conmbi ned woul d have a priority date on and after 19847

A. Yeah, | don't. I'msure we could figure that
out, but | don't know the nunber for sure.

Q And, of course, if | were ready to devel op, ny
priority date would go back and revert to the 1984
filing, does it not?

A.  Yes, typically, unless proof of beneficial use
is submitted late, the priority date stays the sane as
the application date.

Q And when you are tal king about proof being
submtted late, we both know that |I'm | ooking for a well
now, and | can't submt a proof without it, can |?

A. That's correct.

Q And the Departnment will not give me a well
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permt to this date, have they?
A.  You know, | haven't been involved in those

di scussions, but that is my understanding, yes.

MR, KUGLER: Thank you. Nothing further.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Thank you, M.
Keen.

I will next call Liz Cresto to cone forward.

Rai se your right-hand, please.

LI Z CRESTQ

first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said
cause, testified as foll ows:

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Thank you. Pl ease

be seat ed.

EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:

Q | probably ought to give you the opportunity,
| didn't give M. Keen. State your nane for the record,
if you woul d.

A. Liz Cresto.

Q And what is your enploynent?

A. | work here at IDAR  |'ma technica
hydr ol ogi st.

Q Wrking as a technical hydrol ogist, what do

you do?
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A I'mminly involved with surface water, so one
of my jobs is to nonitor the flows of the Snake River
near Mur phy.

Q And Ms. Cresto, I'll hand you a docunent that
we referred to earlier during M. Keen's testinony, and
it's titled "IDWR Staff Menorandum " Are you acquai nted
with this docunment?

A.  Yes.

Q And did you assist in its preparation?

A, Yes.

Q And can you explain what part of this report
that you prepared?

A. | prepared -- within the docunent are severa
nmenos, and | prepared a nenp on the flows at Snake River
near Mirphy, 1980 to 2010.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: |'s her voice being
pi cked up, M. Waver?

MR, MATT WEAVER: It is.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Ckay. Thanks.

If you could speak up, Ms. Cresto, |I'd
appreciate it.

THE W TNESS: kay.

Q (BY HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN) And can you
explain your -- the work that you' ve conducted over the

past few years related to nmonitoring the flows at Murphy
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Gage?

A. So for, | think since 2005, |'ve been
nonitoring the flows of the Snake River near Muirphy.
And what | do is | look at the mnimmflows, which is
3900 cfs fromApril through October, and then 5600 cfs
from Novenber through March. And | nonitor those
flows -- the physical flows on the Snake River near
Mur phy to make sure we are not hitting the nmininum

In addition to the mninmum we termit a
reference flow, because we al so | ook at maki ng sure that
during the flow augnentati on season that flow
augnentation water that is released fromMIner or is a
part of the Bell Rapids out by the Bureau, that that
wat er physically nakes it past the Mirphy Gage.

Q So that augnentation water is considered as
what on top of the mininumfl ow?

A W call it a reference flow, but we consider
that we need to protect that water, kind of as if it
were a mnimumflow, because with the obligation to
shepherd the Bureau's water down and out of the state.
I"'mnot sure if there is a formal agreenent for that.

Q So if you were characterizing the reference
flow, it is a flowrate that includes the m nimum stream
flows, as | understand.

A. Correct.
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Q At Murphy. Plus, sone additional flow on top
of it that is being released either as storage or other
water that is supposed to nove through the systemthat
can't be counted as part of the mninmm right?

A. Correct.

Q And so even though the flows at Mirphy are
hi gher than the mni nuns, that additional flow can't
count toward the mininmum is ny understandi ng.

A. There is a little bit of -- | guess if we were
to fall below the reference line, we might not be
violating the Swan Falls agreenent, the 3900, but we
woul d be, | guess, violating our obligation to the
Bur eau

Q This water that you are talking about, it's in
addition to the mninumflow, it's intended to flow
downst ream past the Murphy Gage for what purpose?

A.  For both the m ninmum and the flow augnmentation
pur poses.

Q Okay. And can you tell me why it is that
you' ve been nonitoring these flows?

A. Because we've had nunerous drought years and
we've cone pretty close to that reference line or the
mnimmflowline. So | mainly closely nonitor them
this time of year in the drought years, not this year,

but other years this time of year typically the flows

208-345-9611 M & M COURT REPCRTI NG SERVI CE, | NC. 800- 234- 9611





10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Audi o Transcription - Status Conference 6/ 14/ 2011

Page 36

dip down in the early sunmer, and that is our main
peri od of concern.

Q Are you aware of any times when the Departnent
has been concerned about flows bel ow the m ni mumor very
near the m ni mun®?

A. | think -- inthis nmeno | only said on
Decenber 14th, 1987 that the flows actually dropped
bel ow the mininum But in 2005 and in -- | knowin
2005, 2007 we cane very close to that reference line, so
the minimum plus the flow augnmentation. And then in
2007, | believe, we actually sent out letters warning
people that we are really close to that reference line
or that there is the potential to shut off, | believe,
groundwat er users.

Q And so this nay be a difficult question, but
you can answer it or not, depending on how confortable
you are. But if the flows at Mirphy Gage or the
reference fl ow dropped bel ow the m ni nuns, then what
woul d you anticipate the Departnent m ght do?

MR, KUGLER: (Object to the question; form and
specul ati on.

Q (BY HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN) Ckay. Do you
have any acquai ntance wi th what the Departnent has done
in the past?

A. | just have the acquaintance with the
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reference -- or the warning letter that was sent out.
Q And what did it warn?

MR. KUGLER: Objection about the best
evi dence.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Well, 1'll overrule
t hat because she's acquainted with the letter, she can
al ways tal k about what --

THE WTNESS: It was just a warning to
potentially shut people off if the flows continued to be
bel ow t he reference |ine.

Q (BY HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKVAN) And this would
be users from what sources of water?

A.  The groundwat er users and junior priority to
the m ni num f | ow.

Q And this would be within the trust water area?

A. | believe so, yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: M. Kugler, | don't
have any nore questions. Do you have questions for M.
Cresto?

MR. KUGLER: | just want to thank her a | ot
for enjoying the weather this year. [It's wonderful when
you see that. But | do have one sinple question for you

with respect to that.
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111
EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY MR KUGLER

Q You are tal king about the shut-off warnings,
whi ch of course is in the overall water case decision
type of thing as far as priority is concerned. But are
you fanmiliar with nmy filing pernmit in this proceedi ng?

A.  Yeah.

Q So | would have considerable priority over
guite a nunber of those permt holders, would I not, if
| get todrill a well?

A I'mnot really sure how that plays in -- | was
not involved in developing the list of the warning
letters and how they go through the priorities. | just
know t hey send out a general Ilist.

Q So your conments in general strictly relate to
that one little portion of this, referring to that
aspect of it.

A.  Yes.

MR. KUGLER: Thank you. That's all.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  John, | would be
happy to recall Shelley Keen.

MR, KUGLER No, that's okay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  He woul d probably

know sone of that.
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MR. KUGLER: That's all right.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Thank you, Ms.
Cresto.

Now, John, the last witness is Allen Wili e,
and |I'Il just have Allen conme up and swear himin. And
| want to tell you, to just give you a preview of why
Allen is testifying.

ALLEN WYLI E,
first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said
cause, testified as foll ows:

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Thank you. Pl ease
be seat ed.

The reason that | asked Allen to participate
and prepare a portion for this meno was because as a
result of where your point of diversion is |located, it
has inpacts, the diversion of that groundwater, both to
the trust water and the nontrust water areas, based on
nodel i ng that the Departnent has done.

And so | want Allan to testify about it and
put it in the record because there is a question, and
think this may cut in your favor nore than agai nst you.

|'' m serious.

MR, KUGLER: | understand. | appreciate that.

And after the hearing aspect | would like to visit a

little bit with a couple of the individuals if possible.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | think that is
great. But what we have is we have a trust water area
that is very fixed in both rule and law and in --

MR KUGLER |'m aware of that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: W have a | ot of
| aw that doesn't necessarily support that very strict
stringent definition

MR. KUGLER:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And so it's a
di chot ony sonewhat to ne as the director and as hearing

of ficer about what to do with it. And like | say, it

may cut -- in fact, | think it does, his testinony
probably will cut nmore into your favor than against it.
MR, KUGLER: | could see that possibility.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: But | want to have
it there, because if | don't then we don't have a

conpl ete record.

MR, KUGLER: | appreciate that aspect of it
t 0o.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Ckay.

MR. KUGLER: |'mjust |ooking at the other
wheel .

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Yeah. Ckay. So

let's just go through it here.
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111
EXAM NATI ON
QUESTI ONS BY HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:

Q M. Wlie, will you state your full name
pl ease for the record.

A Alan Wlie.

Q And will you explain what you do in your work
here for the Departnent.

A. | do groundwater nodeling. |'ve done a
groundwat er nodel for the Eastern Snake Pl ain Aquifer,
and for the Spokane RAFN nodel .

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:. Do you want ne to
go through and establish himas an expert w tness?

MR KUGLER: Not at all. | would love to talk
to hi m about Spokane RAFN.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Well, | can tel
you that he's appeared at various hearings, contest case
heari ngs for the Departnent.

MR. KUGLER: | know t he nane.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  So I'Il 1 dispense
withit.

Q (BY HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN)  But, M. Wlie,
are you acquainted with the report that is in front of
you titled "I DWR Staff Menorandum'?

A. | am
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Q And you prepared a portion of the nenorandunf

A | did.

Q And can you explain what you prepared for the
menor andunf?

A. | was asked to do a nodeling analysis of M.
Kugler's pernmit, and I went through and found the nunber
of acres that he was requesting to irrigate.

| selected -- fromthe permts | found the
| ocation he was intending to put his well. Then | took
the average crop consunptive use and | subtracted off
average precipitation and applied that result to his
acres, and then put that stress on the aquifer at his
wel | and ran a nodel i ng anal ysis and usi ng the nodel
deternined where his inpacts would be realized along the
Snake River.

Q Can you back up a little bit and explain what
the nodel is and what it's intended to try to sinulate?

A.  The nodel, we divided up the aquifer into one
mle by one mle grids and each grid has different
stresses and different physical properties. And these
different stresses and different physical properties
all ow the nodel to steer the inpacts in what we hope is
sonet hi ng approaching the way the real world situation
i s.

And the intent of that is that this results in
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a better tool for administering water than just having a
bunch of experts at a hearing argue about where the
i mpacts mght be realized.

And the nodel was constructed by nany experts,
representatives fromldaho Power, the Bureau, other
peopl e sent experts, sonme people participate on their
own. And the intent of that is to give everybody conmnobn
ground for this tool to use to see how the inpacts are
di stributed al ong the Snake River.

Q Sonebody inputting the information that you
expl ai ned earlier into the nodel, and will you go back

and explain what those inputs would then sinulate using

the nodel with respect to M. Kugler's application -- or
his permit? |'msorry.
A. | cane up with just under 540 acre feet per

year woul d be consunptively used if M. Kugler's permit
were fully devel oped. |Is that what you are asking?

Q And then that would be how nuch water woul d be
consunptively used. But then what are the sinulated
i npacts on the Snake Ri ver and reaches above and bel ow
M I ner? Because | think the report probably shows that
i nf ormati on.

A. Do you want all 11 reaches or just -- |I've got
490.5 above MlIner. So based on M. Keen's that would

be in the nontrust. And then 49 acre feet per year
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woul d be below MIner, and that, as | understand from
M. Keen, would be in the trusts.

Q And you referred to various reaches. | don't
want to delve too far into this subject because |I'm not
sure howrelevant it is. But the nodel apparently
simul ates through the punping depletions to various
identified reaches of the Snake River

A. There is a total of 11 reaches. Do you want
nme to go through all of themor --

Q No, just to sort of generally explain, there
are sone reaches above, sone bel ow

A. There are five reaches above M| ner and six
reaches below Mlner. So that is just areas where the
nodel is totaling up the inpact fromwhatever stress is
bei ng applied to the nodel.

Q And the inpacts or the sinulated inpacts that
you are explaining would occur within what tinme frane if
M. Kugl er's punpi ng?

A. This would be steady state, so that is a |ong
time after full build out. | did do transient graphs,
whi ch sinmulate how long it would take to realize that,
and | went out 100 years.

And in nost cases, particularly below M| ner,
it takes quite a few years before -- sone of themyou

never even get a 10th of a cfs inpact. | think if |
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| ook back here to the full build out, it doesn't get to
half of a -- it doesn't get to a 1/10th of a cfs. |It's
| ess than five years before it gets to -- before it gets
up to a 100th of a cfs.

Q Is there nore information that you would Iike
to add or discuss regarding the sinulations and the
nodel itsel f?

A. No, | can't think of anything.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Okay. Thank you

M. Kugler, again, the reason for the
presentation was to lend to the record the expertise
that the Departnent --

MR, KUGLER: | understand that aspect of it
fromthat standpoint. | was |ooking at other things. |
have no questions for him Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Ckay. Thank you,
M. Wlie.

That is all the information that we had
prepared in support of the staff nmenorandum John, and
you are wel cone to present whatever additional evidence
you want to regarding --

MR, KUGLER: Let me just briefly state, and
I'"l'l leave that for your standpoint, because | don't
think that you have given any thought to or |ooked at

the inpact. M recollection -- and |I'mgetting old,
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don't renmenber a ot anynore. But there was a statute
before a I ot of these rules and regul ations cane in
enacted by the legislature, and | think it's 42-223, if
I remenber right. And you didn't address that in your
order, and | would li ke that addressed at this tinme if
you believe it has any inpact as far as the decision is
concer ned.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  What do you believe
the statute says?

MR KUGLER: | think that is the one that
protected ny rights as if | had gone in and had a well
permt issued to ne originally in 1984, and protects it
just as existed as it was first issued between '84 and
"85, '89 for that natter, a five-year period.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. | don't
recall that.

MR KUGLER: That has to do -- because this
statute was enacted prior to the noratoriumstatute, and
| think that is a legal issue, may or nay not be
i nvolved eventually. As | said, | want to chat briefly
with these gentl enmen here and tal k about sonething el se,
part of it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: |Is the statute
identified in any of your briefing?

MR. KUGLER: | doubt it because -- not to ny
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recollection. | think | argued it orally at that |ast
reconsi deration hearing.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | woul d appreci ate
a direct reference, because what you are talking
about --

MR KUGER: I'Il get it to you in witing.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. Additiona
argunments or evidence you wish to present, M. Kugler?

MR, KUGLER: No, no, nothing further, no.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | know, John, that
you are concerned, again, about the second portion of
what we tal ked about and that is that -- and you
presented evidence at the first hearing regardi ng what
you felt was a significant expenditure of noney on your
part for devel oprent.

MR. KUGLER: Right.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  And | certainly
want to | ook at that as well, but | know that
information is in the file and was presented at the
initial hearing. And so certainly if you want to
expound or expand on that particular issue --

MR KUGLER: No, no, | bl ubbered too nuch at
that tine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Ckay. Well, | hope

you recogni ze at least in the presentation of the
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evidence that is in the record, part of my reason for
goi ng through the nore formal presentation was to set
the stage for what | think is an inportant issue and
some degree it is a test case for nme and --

MR, KUGLER: Well, there is no question that
this is a unique proceeding, but the advantage of it is
you' || never have anot her one.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Maybe.

MR KUGLER: From what | know about ot her
pendi ng (inaudible), | don't anticipate one of this
particular nature. Mne is unique. Because sone of the
controversies that are out there have been pending for a
long tine, even before. And secondly, those newer ones
that are devel opi ng by those three or four other people
who attenpt to prolong are not in the sane position as
mne by a |l ong ways because of how late they filed to
begin with.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | think you are
right in that smaller context, but in the [arger view we
have, and this is part of the reason all of this cane
in, we have many, many water rights right now --

MR, KUGLER: Fromwhat | see now, what your
future applications are, you are right. | go back to
1962 when | argued for the three |daho Power |icenses

bef ore the National Park Association. And | argued the
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State's position as far as granting the licenses at that
point intime, sol knowa little bit about downstream
flow.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Who were you
representing then?

MR KUGLER: The State of |daho.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Were you wor ki ng
for the Attorney General ?

MR, KUGLER: As a special appointnment, yep,
because | worked for the Conm ssion.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  That is very
i nteresting.

MR, KUGLER: A long tinme ago, alnobst 50 years.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | know that. But
ny concern in this is we have many, many water rights
that have termlimts expiring.

MR KUGLER: Yes. Well, | see where that
cones into a different -- a little bit different play
than mne, but you might get some guidance if | go
forward, yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, because many
of those people, if we approve your water right or we
approve it with sonme limted mtigation requirenent,
many of them m ght come in and hire sonebody to apply

the nodel to it and say: M inpact down below isn't all
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to trust water. |It's not all depletion to MI ner

MR KUGLER: | don't think that is open on any
of those that |I'm aware of anyway.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: It's not right now,
but we have many of themthat we will be going through a
review, and we nay be requiring of themsonething to
ensure that the mninumflows at Mirphy are maintained,
that Liz tal ked about, because we were down sone years
bunpi ng against it.

So those are the kinds of issues that we are
| ooki ng at, and consequently in sone respects what you
are presenting is a test case for the Departnment and
maybe for --

MR KUGLER | don't want to nake it a test, |
woul d rather resolve it without that aspect of it. That
is why | wanted to have a hearing a couple years ago, as
my CRP was expiring in 2009.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: Wl |, we knew it
was on the rise even then, that is part of the reason
for the del ay.

Ckay. |If we don't have anything further,
thank you and we'll close the record. And you are
wel cone to talk to them

MR KUGLER  Yeah, | just want to chat a

little bit about a change of point of diversion, as a
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matter of fact.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  So you can stop the

t ape.

(OFf the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | 've reopened the
record -- are we recording, Matt?

MR MATT WEAVER:.  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: | 've reopened the
record just to clarify the representati on here today.

M. Kugler, will you please state for the
record your intention regardi ng your own representation
here as contest ed.

MR. KUGLER: | have fromthe begi nning been
appearing pro se, and as far as this proceeding is
concerned have done so. | have not authorized anyone to
make any filings with the Departnent for ne.

HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMVAN:  Okay. And Jerry

Rigby is --
MR, KUGLER: And Jerry Rigby specifically.
HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN: |Is not counsel of
record.
MR. KUGLER: |s not counsel of record.
HEARI NG OFFI CER SPACKMAN:  Okay. All right.
Thank you very much for clarifying. And we'll go off

the record again. (Hearing Concl uded.)
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  January 2008, so



          2     it's been a while.  Anyway, John requested a



          3     reconsideration, and after review of (inaudible) grounds



          4     that were set forth, the Department and the director



          5     granted the petition.  And I'm looking at the order



          6     granting the augmentation hearing.



          7               And, John, you received a copy of the staff



          8     memorandum?



          9               MR. KUGLER:  I did see that, and I don't



         10     understand it, frankly.  In fact, that was not involved



         11     in my record.  It was on the appeal for review by



         12     (inaudible).



         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I understand, but



         14     in what was in the order granting the augmentation



         15     hearing it says, "Based on this review the director



         16     finds that there was no presentation or opportunity for



         17     presentation of hearing of evidence regarding the effect



         18     of injury or senior priority water rights that might be



         19     caused by the development of the beneficial use proposed



         20     by Cooper."



         21               MR. KUGLER:  I understand that.  But, however,



         22     part of the record there was evidence prior and a prior



         23     existing order with respect to it.  And all I.



         24     Asked for was to review the record.  That is what I



         25     asked for was a hearing on review by the appeal to the
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          1     director.



          2               And if you recall in September when I hadn't



          3     received anything, the director was there and you said:



          4     I know why you are here.  I was with my son there.  And



          5     when I walked into your room you said:  Oh, I know why



          6     you are here.  Somehow this got misplaced and you pulled



          7     the order, I believe, my request for the review out and



          8     said:  Oh, this is why you are here.



          9               And then subsequently there we were going to



         10     set a hearing and last fall you were going to set a



         11     hearing.  In September said, if I had special date, let



         12     it go.  It wasn't set.  And the next thing I know --



         13     because you said you would go ahead and set it



         14     immediately in September or October, it wasn't done



         15     because I didn't have a special date, as far as just



         16     coming down whenever you could, and that didn't happen.



         17               The next thing I know I get this directive and



         18     a hearing date for this hearing today.  And I think,



         19     frankly, was prompted by someone who had no business



         20     chatting with you about this proceeding.



         21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I want to



         22     tell you that --



         23               MR. KUGLER:   Because he sent me a bill with a



         24     charge for communicating with you, personally, Mr. Jerry



         25     Rigby.
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I've not



          2     conversed with Jerry Rigby directly about this matter at



          3     all.



          4               MR. KUGLER:   Well I'm glad to hear that.  I



          5     don't know what he did, but it seems to me like it was a



          6     20 or 30 minute phone call he billed me for, and I



          7     didn't even hire him.  I made inquiries to whether I



          8     should or shouldn't, and I never got a response from him



          9     ever.



         10               So I've been getting no responses constantly



         11     for three years when I've been after it trying to get



         12     the right to go ahead and proceed with my water,



         13     drilling a well.



         14               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Let me go back and



         15     let's look at what was filed, John.  This is, at least



         16     what I have, this is titled "Exception to Memorandum."



         17     Is that the document that you are referring to as to



         18     your request?



         19               MR. KUGLER:  Correct.



         20               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Then you list a



         21     number of exceptions?



         22               MR. KUGLER:  Correct.



         23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And by the way,



         24     this was deemed to be a request for reconsideration, a



         25     petition for reconsideration?
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          1               MR. KUGLER:   I filed a request for review



          2     with the director, and that is what you've even spoken



          3     of as being when you didn't get it set --



          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I'm sorry.



          5               MR. KUGLER:   -- when you didn't get it set



          6     before he retired and quit coming in.



          7               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, the petition



          8     for reconsideration was denied.  Then you filed the



          9     exception.



         10               MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.



         11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And this is the



         12     request.  "The applicant respectfully asks that the



         13     director grant reconsideration of the hearing officer's



         14     order and provide applicant with the opportunity to



         15     submit such other evidence as might be requested or



         16     considered, and upon conclusion of the same grant to



         17     applicant the right to proceed with the development of



         18     the farmland subject to the priority rights and all



         19     senior water right holders that may be affected, if



         20     any."



         21               So as I read that request, it says "provide



         22     the applicant with the opportunity to submit such other



         23     evidence as might be requested or considered and upon



         24     conclusion of the same grant."  So based on the



         25     exceptions that you filed, John, and --
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          1               MR. KUGLER:  I understand that.



          2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And so --



          3               MR. KUGLER:  My point being is, that after



          4     thinking and reviewing it, I'm not planning on



          5     presenting any evidence today.  I want to just resubmit



          6     my thoughts as to what has been missed by you when you



          7     were a hearing officer and now sitting as a director.



          8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But what I intend



          9     to do, honestly, is to have each of these people who



         10     participated in the preparation of this document, they



         11     are here today --



         12               MR. KUGLER:   Well, I object as far as the



         13     record is concerned to any presentation of evidence



         14     other than after I submit some, and I'm not submitting



         15     any, and I think the rule provides that.  They let you



         16     do it by way of a rebuttal type of thing, because this



         17     was from my review of the record, and that is not the



         18     record.



         19               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But we are not



         20     recording yet.  Are we?



         21               MR. MATT WEAVER:  I was recording.



         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That's fine.



         23     It's an informal discussion.  That's fine.  I'm happy to



         24     have it on the record.



         25               For the record, John, based on the order that

�



                                                                       8









          1     was issued, it's my opinion that the record was



          2     deficient in this particular area and that you should



          3     have the opportunity to present evidence and that the



          4     Department as well should have the opportunity to put on



          5     evidence regarding those particular issues.  And I won't



          6     create a further deficiency by not having the evidence



          7     in the record.



          8               So from my perspective this hearing today is



          9     for the purpose of bringing this document into the



         10     record, as well as supporting information regarding this



         11     information, so that all of that is in the record.  And



         12     then if you want to appeal the matter, you can appeal



         13     it -- and the information, a reviewing court would have



         14     the necessary information.



         15               Otherwise, in my opinion, I'm set up for a



         16     remand to go through the same process down the road if,



         17     in fact, you don't agree with decision.



         18               MR. KUGLER:  Well, I understand where you are



         19     coming from in that particular position, I do.  As I



         20     say, my objection is also a formality as far as the



         21     record is concerned, because we had a hearing, and that



         22     is the record which I had taken forward.  Yes, I was



         23     granted a chance to present additional evidence, but



         24     that didn't extend to the State, that was from my



         25     standpoint.
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          1               Had I presented some, yes, you could have



          2     offered some.  That is the argument that I will present



          3     on that particular position.  I don't even understand



          4     what that is about.  I can't read it.  I don't know it.



          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, and I guess



          6     my intention this morning, John, is to put each of these



          7     witnesses on and just very generally ask them some



          8     questions to explain what is in the documents so you



          9     understand what is here.



         10               MR. KUGLER:  Well, I appreciate that part, but



         11     I don't want to waive my right of objection accordingly.



         12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  And I agree,



         13     you certainly have the right to object, but I want this



         14     to be a full and complete record at this point.  And



         15     that is why I've asked staff to prepare the memorandum



         16     and that is why I've asked that you be here today.  And



         17     you are entitled to ask them after they present their



         18     testimony -- it will be more narrative, than anything --



         19     to ask them questions about the information that is



         20     contained here in on cross-examination.



         21               MR. KUGLER:  All right.



         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  All right.  With



         23     that introduction, and maybe we ought to introduce



         24     everybody here again.



         25               My name is Gary Spackman, I'm the hearing
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          1     officer and the interim director of the Department.



          2     This is Matt Weaver to my right, he will be recording



          3     the testimony today.  And Mr. Kugler is here, John



          4     Kugler, we've been conversing.  And also here today is



          5     Shelley Keen, Allan Wylie, Liz Cresto, and Craig Saxton.



          6               And the record has already captured the



          7     discussion about the proceedings today.  I won't need to



          8     repeat them.  Today is the time and place that was set



          9     for this augmentation hearing.



         10               Do we have any other matters to discuss before



         11     we go on the record?



         12               MR. KUGLER:  I just want one question with



         13     you, sir.



         14               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yes.



         15               MR. KUGLER:  That is, this ground was in CRP



         16     when this water right in 1990 was granted, and that I



         17     think is a part of the Department record.  But there was



         18     a CRP contract along the land; am I correct?



         19               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That is my



         20     recollection.



         21               MR. KUGLER:  That is my recollection.



         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Let me just --



         23               MR. KUGLER:  Because I was going to bring the



         24     CRP contract itself physically, but I believe I



         25     testified to that during the prior hearing.
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That is what I



          2     recall.  And, John, let me give you an opportunity,



          3     first of all, to make an opening statement, you might



          4     want to do that here.  And then I would like -- well, I



          5     will call the witnesses that participated in the



          6     preparation of these documents, because I don't think



          7     it's appropriate that I take this into the record



          8     without you having the opportunity to have them here and



          9     examine them.



         10               MR. KUGLER:  Well, okay, I understand.



         11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And then following



         12     their testimony then you'll have an opportunity to



         13     present whatever you want to present.  And from my



         14     perspective, there won't be any kind of rebuttal from



         15     the Department.  I'm just trying to bring evidence into



         16     the record.



         17               So let's start, Mr. Kugler, do you wish to



         18     make an opening statement?



         19               MR. KUGLER:  Briefly it is, I would start off



         20     by commenting with respect to that particular document.



         21     I think it's irrelevant to the issue anyway, the



         22     petition involved here.  So in addition to procedural



         23     objection, I think it's irrelevant on its face.



         24               The question being here is whether or not I



         25     was entitled to drill a well as a result of having a
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          1     permit issued to me.  And it is my position that it is,



          2     and I think from that particular standpoint, the record



          3     did evaluate that I should have been granted a right --



          4     a well right to drill a well and have a well driller



          5     apply for a drilling permit on this particular ground.



          6               And also that not only is it relevant, even if



          7     it were relevant to this particular proceeding, the



          8     mitigating factors which do, in fact, exist within here



          9     as to how much money I had expended and how much time



         10     and effort I had spent trying to get that well done



         11     before we even tried to put it into CRP.  And I had a --



         12     I think the record shows that I had a major investment



         13     in equipment that a well driller asked me to acquire and



         14     then he stole it and sold it, that type of thing, all of



         15     which are factors there.  And I think those overcome any



         16     other difficulties and that I should have the right to



         17     have the well that came as a part of the issuance of the



         18     permit.



         19               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, those



         20     certainly are issues that need to be addressed.



         21               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah.



         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And I don't want to



         23     discount those issues.



         24               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah.



         25               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  The other issues in
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          1     my opinion that relate to this are:  What is the



          2     relationship of your permit with other permits that



          3     either may have been allowed to develop or may have been



          4     held for whatever reason?  What are the policies of the



          5     Department?  What is the law?  And then what are the



          6     impacts?



          7               MR. KUGLER:  Well, I understand that, yeah.



          8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So those are



          9     important issues as well.  And I know you feel they are



         10     irrelevant, but to develop a full and complete record, I



         11     want to have all of that information in place.



         12               MR. KUGLER:  Well, the only rebuttal or



         13     additional statement I would make in that regard is:  My



         14     position would be is that the record already had a



         15     finding in that regard of record.



         16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There certainly was



         17     a finding that there wasn't supporting evidence in the



         18     record, and that's part of the reason why this order



         19     granting the augmentation hearing was issued.



         20               With that opening statement, I will call



         21     Shelley Keen.  If you'll step forward, Mr. Keen.  Take a



         22     seat at the microphone and raise your right hand.



         23                          SHELLEY KEEN,



         24     first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said



         25     cause, testified as follows:
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you, please



          2     be seated.



          3



          4                             EXAMINATION



          5     QUESTIONS BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:



          6           Q.  Mr. Keen, I'll hand you a copy of what is



          7     identified as IDWR Staff Memorandum in the Matter of



          8     Permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B. Kugler and



          9     Diane K. Kugler.



         10           A.  Thank you.



         11           Q.  Are you aware or acquainted with this



         12     document?



         13           A.  I am.



         14           Q.  And it is contained in the files of the



         15     Department of Water Resources and in particular in the



         16     File 35-08359.  And you are aware that the director



         17     requested preparation of a staff memorandum?



         18           A.  Yes.



         19           Q.  And can you explain your participation in the



         20     preparation of this memorandum?



         21           A.  Yes.  I was asked to prepare a list of water



         22     rights that have been issued in the trust water area and



         23     which contain a condition of approval limiting them to a



         24     specific term of years.  And I did that and produced



         25     approximately a 15-page list of about 680 water right
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          1     approvals containing those conditions from that trust



          2     water area.



          3           Q.  Can you explain your acquaintance with trust



          4     water, and if you could identify trust water and what it



          5     is and where it came from.  I just want you to narrate



          6     this information as best you can.  I don't want to



          7     necessarily engage in a very rigid examination process.



          8               And, Mr. Kugler, if you have some objection



          9     during the testimony, you are welcome to tender it at



         10     any time.



         11               MR. KUGLER:  Well, I have a standing objection



         12     against all of it.  Thank you.



         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So recognized.



         14           Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  Mr. Keen?



         15           A.  Okay.  Thank you.



         16               Trust water as defined in the water



         17     appropriation rules for the Department of Water



         18     Resources is that portion of an unsubordinated water



         19     right for generating hydropower that is in excess of a



         20     state-established minimum stream flow.



         21               And in Idaho when we speak of trust water, we



         22     are usually thinking of the water in the Snake River or



         23     its tributaries, including groundwater from Milner Dam



         24     where the minimum stream flow is zero, downstream to



         25     Murphy Gage where the minimum stream flows are, if I
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          1     remember correctly, 3900 cfs from April through October,



          2     and 5600 cfs from November through March.



          3               And the reason for that specific area is that



          4     on the downstream end near Murphy there is an Idaho



          5     Power Company dam and facility at Swan Falls where the



          6     unsubordinated water right was, if I remember correctly,



          7     about 8400 cfs.



          8               So commencing in 1977 there was a lawsuit and



          9     several things that occurred, but it resulted in the



         10     State of Idaho acquiring, in exchange for establishment



         11     of those minimum stream flows, the portion exceeding



         12     those minimums of Idaho Power Company's hydropower right



         13     in trust and the opportunity to reallocate that trust



         14     water for upstream development as long as that upstream



         15     development is in the public interest.



         16           Q.  You referred to trust water being located in a



         17     particular area.  Can you define that geographical area?



         18           A.  Sure.  As I mentioned before, it's the Snake



         19     River and surface water and groundwater tributary to the



         20     Snake River from Murphy, which is in southwestern Idaho,



         21     upstream to Milner Dam in south central Idaho on the



         22     Snake River.  And that area generally encompasses



         23     groundwater across the Eastern Snake River Plain Aquifer



         24     and to some extent in tributary basins like the Wood



         25     River and the Lost River Basin, and then also some area
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          1     on the south side of the Snake River extending across



          2     the Magic Valley.



          3           Q.  Are there fixed boundaries that identify where



          4     groundwater or surface water is considered to be trust



          5     water?



          6           A.  Yes.  That boundary is in the Water



          7     Appropriation Rules, IDAPA 37-0308, if I remember



          8     correctly, in an appendix in that area is described with



          9     metes and bounds and a map.



         10           Q.  Do you have any familiarity with the way in



         11     which the boundary was developed?



         12           A.  I'm not really familiar with exactly how that



         13     was developed at the time.  I suspect there was some



         14     modeling effort, but really I can't testify to extensive



         15     knowledge of that.



         16           Q.  And can you characterize the importance of



         17     trust water area as it relates to the entire Swan Falls



         18     controversy and settlement that occurred statewide in



         19     the '80s?



         20           A.  Yes.  The importance of that was that if the



         21     unsubordinated hydropower right held by Idaho Power at



         22     Swan Falls had to be honored, then there would have had



         23     to be likely a curtailment of water rights throughout



         24     the trust water area in order to meet the 8400 cfs water



         25     right at Swan Falls.
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          1               By entering into the agreement the State



          2     avoided that delivery call and allowed water use to



          3     continue upstream from Swan Falls and across the Eastern



          4     Snake Plain Aquifer and also enabled some additional



          5     development of consumptive water uses with the use of



          6     that trust water.



          7           Q.  What was the importance of having a boundary



          8     in a defined area for that settlement?



          9           A.  The importance of having a boundary was for



         10     proper administration.  The boundary attempts to



         11     describe the area in which water is tributary to the



         12     Snake River downstream from Milner Dam as opposed to



         13     upstream from Milner Dam.



         14               A water tributary to the Snake River upstream



         15     from the Milner Dam is often referred to as nontrust



         16     water and that area is the nontrust area.



         17               But for proper administration there needed to



         18     be some demarkation between the area where water was



         19     going to be considered tributary -- and I'm talking



         20     ground water here -- tributary to the Snake River below



         21     Milner as opposed to upstream.



         22           Q.  Can you explain the background regarding the



         23     water rights that you have listed in the staff



         24     memorandum and the term condition placed on those water



         25     rights?
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          1           A.  Certainly.  As the Department began processing



          2     applications for new water rights within the trust water



          3     area toward the end of the 1980s, it was the policy of



          4     the Department, which continues to this day, to limit



          5     the permits and licenses issued based on those permits



          6     to a term of years, typically 20 years, to allow the



          7     opportunity for the water user to amortize the cost of



          8     development.



          9           Q.  Let me just interrupt for a minute.  I'm sorry



         10     for the interruption.



         11               Is this limitation of time, is it purely based



         12     on policy or are there other grounds for the Department



         13     to have placed a term limit of years, do you know?



         14           A.  I actually took some time yesterday to try to



         15     determine that question.  And, you know, maybe my



         16     research was not complete, but I didn't find the



         17     opportunity for a term limit in statute or in rules.  I



         18     traced it back to the implementation policy from 1988



         19     for the Swan Falls agreement and found several



         20     references and an explanation of that policy in that



         21     document.



         22           Q.  Okay.  Go ahead.  I'm sorry to interrupt.



         23           A.  No problem.



         24               So the purpose of the term limit is to provide



         25     the director of the Department of Water Resources an
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          1     opportunity periodically to evaluate whether those trust



          2     water rights remain in the public interest.  When they



          3     are initially reviewed, they are reviewed to make sure



          4     that they are individually and collectively not going to



          5     provide a significant reduction to flows of the Snake



          6     River.  And if they are found to probably cause a



          7     significant reduction, then there is a public interest



          8     review and criteria in code and the rules for the



          9     director to conduct that public interest review.



         10               And that public interest review weighs the



         11     need for the additional development of the water and its



         12     economic value to the state of Idaho in opposition to



         13     the value of that water for generating hydropower.



         14           Q.  And what are the dates of some of those term



         15     limit approvals?



         16           A.  So the list that I prepared shows approvals



         17     occurring as early as the early 1980s.  I have one, for



         18     example, here from 1981, all the way up to current time.



         19     Although those that are from more recent time tend to be



         20     nonconsumptive uses and DCMI uses and that kind of



         21     thing.



         22               The older ones I suspect were permits that



         23     were issued and then reprocessed in the late 1980s and



         24     early 1990s.  The rules called for permits in the trust



         25     water area that had already been issued but had a
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          1     limited development to actually be reprocessed so that



          2     the public interest evaluation could be applied to them.



          3           Q.  Do you know if Mr. Kugler's permit 35-8359 was



          4     one of those that the Department reviewed for



          5     reprocessing?



          6           A.  Yes, that permit did show up on my list.  The



          7     approved date on the list is July 27th, 1990, according



          8     to what I came up with.  And I don't know right off the



          9     top of my head whether it was reprocessed or whether it



         10     was still in the application state when trust water



         11     processing began.



         12           Q.  Let's go back to the term of years for the



         13     list of water rights that you have.  Many of those were



         14     issued for -- and what was the term of years, its



         15     limitation?



         16           A.  Almost all of them have a term of 20 years.



         17           Q.  And based on the dates that you gave, are some



         18     of those term of years expiring now, or terms of years?



         19           A.  Yes, that is correct.  Many of the approvals



         20     occurred around 1990 or shortly thereafter, so just



         21     about now we would be seeing some of these permits and



         22     licenses begin to reach the date after which the



         23     director can review them for -- to make sure they remain



         24     in the public interest.



         25           Q.  So what are we doing, now that those terms of
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          1     years are expiring?



          2           A.  The Department has drafted a letter, which has



          3     not gone out yet, but the letter is addressed to holders



          4     of these permits and licenses, and some of them may even



          5     have been decreed in the Snake River Basin Adjudication



          6     now, which contain the term review condition.



          7               And it's notifying those water right holders



          8     that their terms, their 20-year terms are expiring and



          9     that the Department may begin evaluating those to



         10     determine and if they are still in the public interest.



         11               The letter as drafted currently, and I have to



         12     say that it hasn't gone out yet, indicates that the



         13     Department probably won't begin that review process



         14     until about 2014, because the Department is addressing



         15     some other priorities first.



         16           Q.  And what is the reason for the concern or the



         17     letter at this point?



         18           A.  As I understand it, I haven't been too heavily



         19     involved in these discussions, but to some extent it has



         20     to do with the fact that the Snake River Basin



         21     adjudication is addressing the hydropower rights held by



         22     Idaho Power Company and was an important part of the



         23     adjudication process to define some outstanding issues



         24     related to trust water and trust water processing.  And



         25     as part of that, the State of Idaho needed to commit to
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          1     Idaho Power that it would conduct this review of these



          2     trust water rights.



          3           Q.  Has there been any concern expressed about the



          4     continued use of this trust water and its impacts on the



          5     minimum flows at Murphy?



          6           A.  Yes.  There has been some discussion over the



          7     years.  There have been a limited number of times that



          8     the opportunity to maintain the minimum stream flows has



          9     come into question, the ability to maintain those



         10     minimum stream flows.



         11               And because of that -- again, the State of



         12     Idaho could be facing the need to curtail water rights



         13     to make sure that those minimum stream flows are



         14     maintained.  And if the Department were to curtail water



         15     rights, presumably these that I've identified on the



         16     list, these trust water rights, by definition would be



         17     ones that would be candidates for curtailment because



         18     they use the water that is tributary to the Snake River



         19     and that minimum stream flow reach.



         20           Q.  Mr. Keen, do you know whether or not the point



         21     of diversion proposed by permit number 35-8359 is within



         22     or without the trust water area?



         23           A.  Yes, I looked at that yesterday.  And it is



         24     within the trust water area about three to four miles



         25     north of the line dividing trust water from nontrust
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          1     water in the area of American Falls Reservoir, and north



          2     of that line would put it firmly in the trust water



          3     area.



          4           Q.  But close to the boundary of the trust water?



          5           A.  Yes.  Three to four miles is relatively close



          6     to the boundary, yes.



          7           Q.  And because it's close to the boundary, you



          8     testified at one time about a nontrust water area that



          9     would be upstream, or water tributary above Milner.  Can



         10     you talk about the nontrust water area and what it is?



         11           A.  Yes.  Under the State water plan, the minimum



         12     stream flow on the Snake River at Milner Dam, which is



         13     in south central Idaho, is zero, meaning that there is



         14     no obligation to deliver water upstream from Milner Dam



         15     to uses downstream from Milner Dam.



         16               And the area where groundwater and surface



         17     water are tributary to the Snake River upstream from



         18     Milner Dam and, therefore, potentially subject to



         19     curtailment and administration to regulate water rights



         20     by priority, that area is typically referred to as the



         21     nontrust water area.



         22           Q.  And will you talk about the Department's



         23     processing of water rights in the nontrust and trust



         24     water area and any possible restrictions on



         25     appropriations that have been imposed or in place by the
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          1     Department over the last 20 or 30 years?



          2           A.  Yes.  In 1992 Director Higginson of the



          3     Department of Water Resources established a moratorium



          4     on new appropriations in the Snake River Basin,



          5     including surface and groundwater upstream from Weiser,



          6     which is on the Snake River across from Oregon, so on



          7     the western side of the state.



          8               And that moratorium was in response to a



          9     period of drought in the state of Idaho in which stream



         10     flows were down, so reliance on groundwater



         11     appropriations became greater and the maintenance of



         12     minimum stream flows, particularly the one at Weiser,



         13     was becoming difficult to accomplish.



         14               And so the first step there in making sure



         15     that the minimum stream flow was maintained was to make



         16     sure we weren't exacerbating the problem by issuing new



         17     water right approvals.



         18               As conditions changed, "conditions" meaning



         19     precipitation and snow pack over the years, that



         20     moratorium was modified, first to carve out the nontrust



         21     water area and establish a separate moratorium there,



         22     and then to back the end point of the remaining piece of



         23     the moratorium up to King Hill, which is upstream from



         24     Swan Falls.



         25               And so the way things sit now, is that since
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          1     1992 there has been the moratorium, in its modified form



          2     now, that extends across the trust water area and



          3     includes tributary basins, such as the entire Wood River



          4     Basin, the entire Little Lost and Big Lost River Basins.



          5               And in the nontrust water area, the moratorium



          6     order there had some language that was supported by



          7     legislation that caused it to be in place until 1997.



          8     That language was a little bit ambiguous, but the



          9     Department has since interpreted that to mean that the



         10     moratorium in the nontrust water area upstream from



         11     Milner has expired and there is no moratorium in place



         12     there.  However, there have been delivery calls made in



         13     that area by surface water users against groundwater and



         14     other appropriators.



         15               And the conclusion of the Department is that



         16     for the most part there isn't water available for



         17     appropriation without jeopardizing the ability of the



         18     senior surface water users to receive their full



         19     supplies.  And so even though there is no moratorium in



         20     the nontrust water area, a water user in the nontrust



         21     water area would have to show the Department that there



         22     actually is some water that could be appropriated



         23     without causing injury to the senior water users or that



         24     user would have to mitigate for the potential injury to



         25     senior surface water users.
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          1           Q.  And, Mr. Keen, do you know if permit number



          2     35-8359 was affected by the execution and issuance of



          3     moratoriums in 1992 by Director Higginson?



          4           A.  Yes.  The permit had been issued by the time



          5     the moratorium went into place.  But in 1994 Director



          6     Higginson issued an order, I believe it was called a



          7     temporary stay in development, in which he required



          8     permit holders who -- in the trust water area who have



          9     not yet submitted proof of beneficial use to either



         10     submit proof of beneficial use indicating that they had



         11     completed their development, or to show that they have



         12     made a substantial investment in development of their



         13     permit.



         14               I don't remember what that threshold was for



         15     substantial, seems like it was $15,000 or $25,000,



         16     something like that.  I don't remember that precise



         17     number.  Or the third option was to request an ongoing



         18     stay in development until circumstances changed.



         19               And so Mr. Kugler's permit, if I remember



         20     correctly, ultimately received a stay in development, a



         21     long-term stay, and then that was extended through or



         22     requests for extension of time to submit proof of



         23     beneficial use, if I recall correctly.  And I don't



         24     remember how many of those extensions there might have



         25     been.
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I don't have any



          2     other questions for Mr. Keen.



          3               Mr. Kugler, do you wish to cross-examine Mr.



          4     Keen regarding new information?



          5



          6                            EXAMINATION



          7     QUESTIONS BY MR. KUGLER:



          8           Q.  Well, I was wondering when these rules that he



          9     talked about to begin with were adopted, that you were



         10     talking about, as far as trust waters were concerned.



         11               Do you know the specific date?



         12           A.  The water appropriation rules were first



         13     adopted in 1986 or thereabouts, if I remember correctly,



         14     and I think maybe modified slightly the year after.  I



         15     remember reading something about two years in the



         16     mid-1980s when the rules were adopted and then adjusted



         17     in the next legislative session.  So I think it was '86



         18     and '87, but I could be off by a year or two there.



         19           Q.  Does this list that you have in this



         20     particular document include issuance of permits from



         21     nontrust waters as well, or is it all trust water only?



         22           A.  This list is only what the Department



         23     considers to be trust water.  There are no -- the points



         24     of diversion are within the trust water area.



         25           Q.  But you indicated that a line is within the
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          1     trust area?  Do you know what the boundary lines are in



          2     that particular area specifically?



          3           A.  Yes.  Yours is within the trust water area,



          4     but it is close to the boundary line.  It's about --



          5           Q.  You talked about the north boundary.  What



          6     about the west boundary?



          7           A.  Well, at that location the boundary between



          8     trust and nontrust runs on a line trending mainly



          9     east-west but a little bit north-south.  So if you



         10     picture it coming past American Falls Reservoir on the



         11     north side, it runs northeast to southwest.  And your



         12     point of diversion for your permit is on the north, or I



         13     guess you could say northwest side of that line within



         14     the trust water area, and it's about three to four miles



         15     from that line.



         16           Q.  Both north and west?  I mean, the line crosses



         17     this way on a rectangle.  There is a square corner up in



         18     there somewhere.



         19           A.  If you took the most direct line



         20     southeastward, that would be three to four miles.  If



         21     you went directly south, it would be a little more than



         22     that.  If you went directly eastward, it would be



         23     considerably more than that, if I remember correctly.



         24           Q.  Now, are there permits that were issued



         25     between 1984 and 1990 that are not on that particular
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          1     list that cover this general area?



          2           A.  Yes.  Yes, there were permits that were issued



          3     in that time frame that would not have been reprocessed



          4     under the trust water processing established in the



          5     rules, because the development would have been completed



          6     by the time the trust water processing began or there



          7     would have been a substantial investment made and the



          8     right -- the permit holders would have been asked to



          9     provide evidence of that, if they had not already



         10     submitted proof of beneficial use.



         11           Q.  Between 1984 and 1990 could you provide a list



         12     of those documents, of those permits?  Could it be



         13     extracted from Department records?



         14           A.  I think it certainly could.  I'm not sure how



         15     much effort it would take.  I would have to think



         16     through how we would identify those, but I would think



         17     it would certainly be possible.



         18           Q.  Well, I'm thinking of between -- up until that



         19     July date of 1990 when my permit was actually physically



         20     issued, the application being filed much earlier, of



         21     course, than that, when I was trying to develop the land



         22     in the '80s, '84 and '85.  You don't have any idea what



         23     number that might be?



         24           A.  I don't right off the top of my head.  If I



         25     had to ballpark it, I would say probably hundreds, but I
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          1     don't know how many hundreds.  And that is just a guess



          2     based on my experience issuing water right licenses for



          3     those in the 1990s.



          4           Q.  Okay.  But I'm talking about on or before July



          5     of 1990.



          6           A.  Yes.  If you are asking about permits issued



          7     before July of 1990 and after some date in the early



          8     '80s and those permits were not reprocessed and did not



          9     get the term limit, like I said, I would guess it would



         10     be in the hundreds, but I don't know how many hundreds.



         11           Q.  You don't know how many of these permits



         12     combined would have a priority date on and after 1984?



         13           A.  Yeah, I don't.  I'm sure we could figure that



         14     out, but I don't know the number for sure.



         15           Q.  And, of course, if I were ready to develop, my



         16     priority date would go back and revert to the 1984



         17     filing, does it not?



         18           A.  Yes, typically, unless proof of beneficial use



         19     is submitted late, the priority date stays the same as



         20     the application date.



         21           Q.  And when you are talking about proof being



         22     submitted late, we both know that I'm looking for a well



         23     now, and I can't submit a proof without it, can I?



         24           A.  That's correct.



         25           Q.  And the Department will not give me a well
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          1     permit to this date, have they?



          2           A.  You know, I haven't been involved in those



          3     discussions, but that is my understanding, yes.



          4               MR. KUGLER:    Thank you.  Nothing further.



          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you, Mr.



          6     Keen.



          7               I will next call Liz Cresto to come forward.



          8               Raise your right-hand, please.



          9                           LIZ CRESTO,



         10     first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said



         11     cause, testified as follows:



         12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you.  Please



         13     be seated.



         14



         15                           EXAMINATION



         16     QUESTIONS BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:



         17           Q.  I probably ought to give you the opportunity,



         18     I didn't give Mr. Keen.  State your name for the record,



         19     if you would.



         20           A.  Liz Cresto.



         21           Q.  And what is your employment?



         22           A.  I work here at IDWR.  I'm a technical



         23     hydrologist.



         24           Q.  Working as a technical hydrologist, what do



         25     you do?
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          1           A.  I'm mainly involved with surface water, so one



          2     of my jobs is to monitor the flows of the Snake River



          3     near Murphy.



          4           Q.  And Ms. Cresto, I'll hand you a document that



          5     we referred to earlier during Mr. Keen's testimony, and



          6     it's titled "IDWR Staff Memorandum."  Are you acquainted



          7     with this document?



          8           A.  Yes.



          9           Q.  And did you assist in its preparation?



         10           A.  Yes.



         11           Q.  And can you explain what part of this report



         12     that you prepared?



         13           A.  I prepared -- within the document are several



         14     memos, and I prepared a memo on the flows at Snake River



         15     near Murphy, 1980 to 2010.



         16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Is her voice being



         17     picked up, Mr. Weaver?



         18               MR. MATT WEAVER:  It is.



         19               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Thanks.



         20               If you could speak up, Ms. Cresto, I'd



         21     appreciate it.



         22               THE WITNESS:  Okay.



         23           Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  And can you



         24     explain your -- the work that you've conducted over the



         25     past few years related to monitoring the flows at Murphy
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          1     Gage?



          2           A.  So for, I think since 2005, I've been



          3     monitoring the flows of the Snake River near Murphy.



          4     And what I do is I look at the minimum flows, which is



          5     3900 cfs from April through October, and then 5600 cfs



          6     from November through March.  And I monitor those



          7     flows -- the physical flows on the Snake River near



          8     Murphy to make sure we are not hitting the minimum.



          9               In addition to the minimum, we term it a



         10     reference flow, because we also look at making sure that



         11     during the flow augmentation season that flow



         12     augmentation water that is released from Milner or is a



         13     part of the Bell Rapids out by the Bureau, that that



         14     water physically makes it past the Murphy Gage.



         15           Q.  So that augmentation water is considered as



         16     what on top of the minimum flow?



         17           A.  We call it a reference flow, but we consider



         18     that we need to protect that water, kind of as if it



         19     were a minimum flow, because with the obligation to



         20     shepherd the Bureau's water down and out of the state.



         21     I'm not sure if there is a formal agreement for that.



         22           Q.  So if you were characterizing the reference



         23     flow, it is a flow rate that includes the minimum stream



         24     flows, as I understand.



         25           A.  Correct.
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          1           Q.  At Murphy.  Plus, some additional flow on top



          2     of it that is being released either as storage or other



          3     water that is supposed to move through the system that



          4     can't be counted as part of the minimum; right?



          5           A.  Correct.



          6           Q.  And so even though the flows at Murphy are



          7     higher than the minimums, that additional flow can't



          8     count toward the minimum, is my understanding.



          9           A.  There is a little bit of -- I guess if we were



         10     to fall below the reference line, we might not be



         11     violating the Swan Falls agreement, the 3900, but we



         12     would be, I guess, violating our obligation to the



         13     Bureau.



         14           Q.  This water that you are talking about, it's in



         15     addition to the minimum flow, it's intended to flow



         16     downstream past the Murphy Gage for what purpose?



         17           A.  For both the minimum and the flow augmentation



         18     purposes.



         19           Q.  Okay.  And can you tell me why it is that



         20     you've been monitoring these flows?



         21           A.  Because we've had numerous drought years and



         22     we've come pretty close to that reference line or the



         23     minimum flow line.  So I mainly closely monitor them



         24     this time of year in the drought years, not this year,



         25     but other years this time of year typically the flows

�



                                                                      36









          1     dip down in the early summer, and that is our main



          2     period of concern.



          3           Q.  Are you aware of any times when the Department



          4     has been concerned about flows below the minimum or very



          5     near the minimum?



          6           A.  I think  -- in this memo I only said on



          7     December 14th, 1987 that the flows actually dropped



          8     below the minimum.  But in 2005 and in -- I know in



          9     2005, 2007 we came very close to that reference line, so



         10     the minimum plus the flow augmentation.  And then in



         11     2007, I believe, we actually sent out letters warning



         12     people that we are really close to that reference line



         13     or that there is the potential to shut off, I believe,



         14     groundwater users.



         15           Q.  And so this may be a difficult question, but



         16     you can answer it or not, depending on how comfortable



         17     you are.  But if the flows at Murphy Gage or the



         18     reference flow dropped below the minimums, then what



         19     would you anticipate the Department might do?



         20               MR. KUGLER:  Object to the question; form and



         21     speculation.



         22           Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  Okay.  Do you



         23     have any acquaintance with what the Department has done



         24     in the past?



         25           A.  I just have the acquaintance with the
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          1     reference -- or the warning letter that was sent out.



          2           Q.  And what did it warn?



          3               MR. KUGLER:  Objection about the best



          4     evidence.



          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I'll overrule



          6     that because she's acquainted with the letter, she can



          7     always talk about what --



          8               THE WITNESS:  It was just a warning to



          9     potentially shut people off if the flows continued to be



         10     below the reference line.



         11           Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  And this would



         12     be users from what sources of water?



         13           A.  The groundwater users and junior priority to



         14     the minimum flow.



         15           Q.  And this would be within the trust water area?



         16           A.  I believe so, yes.



         17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Mr. Kugler, I don't



         18     have any more questions.  Do you have questions for Ms.



         19     Cresto?



         20               MR. KUGLER:  I just want to thank her a lot



         21     for enjoying the weather this year.  It's wonderful when



         22     you see that.  But I do have one simple question for you



         23     with respect to that.



         24



         25
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          1     ///



          2                            EXAMINATION



          3     QUESTIONS BY MR. KUGLER:



          4           Q.  You are talking about the shut-off warnings,



          5     which of course is in the overall water case decision



          6     type of thing as far as priority is concerned.  But are



          7     you familiar with my filing permit in this proceeding?



          8           A.  Yeah.



          9           Q.  So I would have considerable priority over



         10     quite a number of those permit holders, would I not, if



         11     I get to drill a well?



         12           A.  I'm not really sure how that plays in -- I was



         13     not involved in developing the list of the warning



         14     letters and how they go through the priorities.  I just



         15     know they send out a general list.



         16           Q.  So your comments in general strictly relate to



         17     that one little portion of this, referring to that



         18     aspect of it.



         19           A.  Yes.



         20               MR. KUGLER:  Thank you.  That's all.



         21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  John, I would be



         22     happy to recall Shelley Keen.



         23               MR. KUGLER:  No, that's okay.



         24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  He would probably



         25     know some of that.
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          1               MR. KUGLER:  That's all right.



          2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you, Ms.



          3     Cresto.



          4               Now, John, the last witness is Allen Wylie,



          5     and I'll just have Allen come up and swear him in.  And



          6     I want to tell you, to just give you a preview of why



          7     Allen is testifying.



          8                           ALLEN WYLIE,



          9     first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said



         10     cause, testified as follows:



         11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you.  Please



         12     be seated.



         13               The reason that I asked Allen to participate



         14     and prepare a portion for this memo was because as a



         15     result of where your point of diversion is located, it



         16     has impacts, the diversion of that groundwater, both to



         17     the trust water and the nontrust water areas, based on



         18     modeling that the Department has done.



         19               And so I want Allan to testify about it and



         20     put it in the record because there is a question, and I



         21     think this may cut in your favor more than against you.



         22     I'm serious.



         23               MR. KUGLER:  I understand.  I appreciate that.



         24     And after the hearing aspect I would like to visit a



         25     little bit with a couple of the individuals if possible.
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I think that is



          2     great.  But what we have is we have a trust water area



          3     that is very fixed in both rule and law and in --



          4               MR. KUGLER:  I'm aware of that.



          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  We have a lot of



          6     law that doesn't necessarily support that very strict



          7     stringent definition.



          8               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.



          9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And so it's a



         10     dichotomy somewhat to me as the director and as hearing



         11     officer about what to do with it.  And like I say, it



         12     may cut -- in fact, I think it does, his testimony



         13     probably will cut more into your favor than against it.



         14               MR. KUGLER:  I could see that possibility.



         15               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But I want to have



         16     it there, because if I don't then we don't have a



         17     complete record.



         18               MR. KUGLER:  I appreciate that aspect of it



         19     too.



         20               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.



         21               MR. KUGLER:  I'm just looking at the other



         22     wheel.



         23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.  Okay.  So



         24     let's just go through it here.



         25
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          1     ///



          2                            EXAMINATION



          3     QUESTIONS BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:



          4           Q.  Mr. Wylie, will you state your full name



          5     please for the record.



          6           A.  Allan Wylie.



          7           Q.  And will you explain what you do in your work



          8     here for the Department.



          9           A.  I do groundwater modeling.  I've done a



         10     groundwater model for the Eastern Snake Plain Aquifer,



         11     and for the Spokane RAFN model.



         12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Do you want me to



         13     go through and establish him as an expert witness?



         14               MR. KUGLER:  Not at all.  I would love to talk



         15     to him about Spokane RAFN.



         16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I can tell



         17     you that he's appeared at various hearings, contest case



         18     hearings for the Department.



         19               MR. KUGLER:  I know the name.



         20               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So I'll dispense



         21     with it.



         22           Q.  (BY HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN)  But, Mr. Wylie,



         23     are you acquainted with the report that is in front of



         24     you titled "IDWR Staff Memorandum"?



         25           A.  I am.
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          1           Q.  And you prepared a portion of the memorandum?



          2           A.  I did.



          3           Q.  And can you explain what you prepared for the



          4     memorandum?



          5           A.  I was asked to do a modeling analysis of Mr.



          6     Kugler's permit, and I went through and found the number



          7     of acres that he was requesting to irrigate.



          8               I selected -- from the permits I found the



          9     location he was intending to put his well.  Then I took



         10     the average crop consumptive use and I subtracted off



         11     average precipitation and applied that result to his



         12     acres, and then put that stress on the aquifer at his



         13     well and ran a modeling analysis and using the model



         14     determined where his impacts would be realized along the



         15     Snake River.



         16           Q.  Can you back up a little bit and explain what



         17     the model is and what it's intended to try to simulate?



         18           A.  The model, we divided up the aquifer into one



         19     mile by one mile grids and each grid has different



         20     stresses and different physical properties.  And these



         21     different stresses and different physical properties



         22     allow the model to steer the impacts in what we hope is



         23     something approaching the way the real world situation



         24     is.



         25               And the intent of that is that this results in

�



                                                                      43









          1     a better tool for administering water than just having a



          2     bunch of experts at a hearing argue about where the



          3     impacts might be realized.



          4               And the model was constructed by many experts,



          5     representatives from Idaho Power, the Bureau, other



          6     people sent experts, some people participate on their



          7     own.  And the intent of that is to give everybody common



          8     ground for this tool to use to see how the impacts are



          9     distributed along the Snake River.



         10           Q.  Somebody inputting the information that you



         11     explained earlier into the model, and will you go back



         12     and explain what those inputs would then simulate using



         13     the model with respect to Mr. Kugler's application -- or



         14     his permit?  I'm sorry.



         15           A.  I came up with just under 540 acre feet per



         16     year would be consumptively used if Mr. Kugler's permit



         17     were fully developed.  Is that what you are asking?



         18           Q.  And then that would be how much water would be



         19     consumptively used.  But then what are the simulated



         20     impacts on the Snake River and reaches above and below



         21     Milner?  Because I think the report probably shows that



         22     information.



         23           A.  Do you want all 11 reaches or just -- I've got



         24     490.5 above Milner.  So based on Mr. Keen's that would



         25     be in the nontrust.  And then 49 acre feet per year
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          1     would be below Milner, and that, as I understand from



          2     Mr. Keen, would be in the trusts.



          3           Q.  And you referred to various reaches.  I don't



          4     want to delve too far into this subject because I'm not



          5     sure how relevant it is.  But the model apparently



          6     simulates through the pumping depletions to various



          7     identified reaches of the Snake River.



          8           A.  There is a total of 11 reaches.  Do you want



          9     me to go through all of them or --



         10           Q.  No, just to sort of generally explain, there



         11     are some reaches above, some below.



         12           A.  There are five reaches above Milner and six



         13     reaches below Milner.  So that is just areas where the



         14     model is totaling up the impact from whatever stress is



         15     being applied to the model.



         16           Q.  And the impacts or the simulated impacts that



         17     you are explaining would occur within what time frame if



         18     Mr. Kugler's pumping?



         19           A.  This would be steady state, so that is a long



         20     time after full build out.  I did do transient graphs,



         21     which simulate how long it would take to realize that,



         22     and I went out 100 years.



         23               And in most cases, particularly below Milner,



         24     it takes quite a few years before -- some of them you



         25     never even get a 10th of a cfs impact.  I think if I
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          1     look back here to the full build out, it doesn't get to



          2     half of a -- it doesn't get to a 1/10th of a cfs.  It's



          3     less than five years before it gets to -- before it gets



          4     up to a 100th of a cfs.



          5           Q.  Is there more information that you would like



          6     to add or discuss regarding the simulations and the



          7     model itself?



          8           A.  No, I can't think of anything.



          9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Thank you.



         10               Mr. Kugler, again, the reason for the



         11     presentation was to lend to the record the expertise



         12     that the Department --



         13               MR. KUGLER:  I understand that aspect of it



         14     from that standpoint.  I was looking at other things.  I



         15     have no questions for him.  Thank you.



         16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Thank you,



         17     Mr. Wylie.



         18               That is all the information that we had



         19     prepared in support of the staff memorandum, John, and



         20     you are welcome to present whatever additional evidence



         21     you want to regarding --



         22               MR. KUGLER:   Let me just briefly state, and



         23     I'll leave that for your standpoint, because I don't



         24     think that you have given any thought to or looked at



         25     the impact.  My recollection -- and I'm getting old, I
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          1     don't remember a lot anymore.  But there was a statute



          2     before a lot of these rules and regulations came in



          3     enacted by the legislature, and I think it's 42-223, if



          4     I remember right.  And you didn't address that in your



          5     order, and I would like that addressed at this time if



          6     you believe it has any impact as far as the decision is



          7     concerned.



          8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  What do you believe



          9     the statute says?



         10               MR. KUGLER:  I think that is the one that



         11     protected my rights as if I had gone in and had a well



         12     permit issued to me originally in 1984, and protects it



         13     just as existed as it was first issued between '84 and



         14     '85, '89 for that matter, a five-year period.



         15               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  I don't



         16     recall that.



         17               MR. KUGLER:  That has to do -- because this



         18     statute was enacted prior to the moratorium statute, and



         19     I think that is a legal issue, may or may not be



         20     involved eventually.  As I said, I want to chat briefly



         21     with these gentlemen here and talk about something else,



         22     part of it.



         23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Is the statute



         24     identified in any of your briefing?



         25               MR. KUGLER:  I doubt it because -- not to my
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          1     recollection.  I think I argued it orally at that last



          2     reconsideration hearing.



          3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I would appreciate



          4     a direct reference, because what you are talking



          5     about --



          6               MR. KUGLER:  I'll get it to you in writing.



          7               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Additional



          8     arguments or evidence you wish to present, Mr. Kugler?



          9               MR. KUGLER:  No, no, nothing further, no.



         10               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I know, John, that



         11     you are concerned, again, about the second portion of



         12     what we talked about and that is that -- and you



         13     presented evidence at the first hearing regarding what



         14     you felt was a significant expenditure of money on your



         15     part for development.



         16               MR. KUGLER:  Right.



         17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And I certainly



         18     want to look at that as well, but I know that



         19     information is in the file and was presented at the



         20     initial hearing.  And so certainly if you want to



         21     expound or expand on that particular issue --



         22               MR. KUGLER:  No, no, I blubbered too much at



         23     that time.



         24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Well, I hope



         25     you recognize at least in the presentation of the

�



                                                                      48









          1     evidence that is in the record, part of my reason for



          2     going through the more formal presentation was to set



          3     the stage for what I think is an important issue and



          4     some degree it is a test case for me and --



          5               MR. KUGLER:  Well, there is no question that



          6     this is a unique proceeding, but the advantage of it is



          7     you'll never have another one.



          8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Maybe.



          9               MR. KUGLER:  From what I know about other



         10     pending (inaudible), I don't anticipate one of this



         11     particular nature.  Mine is unique.  Because some of the



         12     controversies that are out there have been pending for a



         13     long time, even before.  And secondly, those newer ones



         14     that are developing by those three or four other people



         15     who attempt to prolong are not in the same position as



         16     mine by a long ways because of how late they filed to



         17     begin with.



         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I think you are



         19     right in that smaller context, but in the larger view we



         20     have, and this is part of the reason all of this came



         21     in, we have many, many water rights right now --



         22               MR. KUGLER:  From what I see now, what your



         23     future applications are, you are right.  I go back to



         24     1962 when I argued for the three Idaho Power licenses



         25     before the National Park Association.  And I argued the
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          1     State's position as far as granting the licenses at that



          2     point in time, so I know a little bit about downstream



          3     flow.



          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Who were you



          5     representing then?



          6               MR. KUGLER:  The State of Idaho.



          7               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Were you working



          8     for the Attorney General?



          9               MR. KUGLER:  As a special appointment, yep,



         10     because I worked for the Commission.



         11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That is very



         12     interesting.



         13               MR. KUGLER:  A long time ago, almost 50 years.



         14               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I know that.  But



         15     my concern in this is we have many, many water rights



         16     that have term limits expiring.



         17               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  Well, I see where that



         18     comes into a different -- a little bit different play



         19     than mine, but you might get some guidance if I go



         20     forward, yes.



         21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, because many



         22     of those people, if we approve your water right or we



         23     approve it with some limited mitigation requirement,



         24     many of them might come in and hire somebody to apply



         25     the model to it and say:  My impact down below isn't all
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          1     to trust water.  It's not all depletion to Milner.



          2               MR. KUGLER:  I don't think that is open on any



          3     of those that I'm aware of anyway.



          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  It's not right now,



          5     but we have many of them that we will be going through a



          6     review, and we may be requiring of them something to



          7     ensure that the minimum flows at Murphy are maintained,



          8     that Liz talked about, because we were down some years



          9     bumping against it.



         10               So those are the kinds of issues that we are



         11     looking at, and consequently in some respects what you



         12     are presenting is a test case for the Department and



         13     maybe for --



         14               MR. KUGLER:  I don't want to make it a test, I



         15     would rather resolve it without that aspect of it.  That



         16     is why I wanted to have a hearing a couple years ago, as



         17     my CRP was expiring in 2009.



         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, we knew it



         19     was on the rise even then, that is part of the reason



         20     for the delay.



         21               Okay.  If we don't have anything further,



         22     thank you and we'll close the record.  And you are



         23     welcome to talk to them.



         24               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah, I just want to chat a



         25     little bit about a change of point of diversion, as a
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          1     matter of fact.



          2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So you can stop the



          3     tape.



          4               (Off the record.)



          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I've reopened the



          6     record -- are we recording, Matt?



          7               MR. MATT WEAVER:  Yes.



          8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I've reopened the



          9     record just to clarify the representation here today.



         10               Mr. Kugler, will you please state for the



         11     record your intention regarding your own representation



         12     here as contested.



         13               MR. KUGLER:  I have from the beginning been



         14     appearing pro se, and as far as this proceeding is



         15     concerned have done so.  I have not authorized anyone to



         16     make any filings with the Department for me.



         17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  And Jerry



         18     Rigby is --



         19               MR. KUGLER:  And Jerry Rigby specifically.



         20               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Is not counsel of



         21     record.



         22               MR. KUGLER:  Is not counsel of record.



         23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  All right.



         24     Thank you very much for clarifying.  And we'll go off



         25     the record again.   (Hearing Concluded.)
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